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MINISTERS’ LETTER

Date 26 October 2015

The Hon. Gladys Berejiklian MP

Treasurer and Minister for Industrial Relations
52 Martin Place

Sydney NSW 2000

The Hon. Dominic Perrottet MP
Minister for Finance, Services and Property
52 Martin Place

Sydney NSW 2000

Dear Treasurer and Minister,

We are pleased to submit to you, for presentation to the Parliament of New South Wales,
the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2015. The report has been prepared in
accordance with the Annual Reports (Statutory Bodies) Act 1984 and the applicable
provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983.

John Brogden AM
Chairman

. S e ——
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Karen Penrose
Director
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

Chairman’s
review

On behalf of the Board of Directors and staff of UrbanGrowth NSW,

| am pleased to present our organisation’s Annual Report for 2015. The past year has been one
of consistent and significant progress in the delivery of our government mandate, strengthening our
corporate governance, and establishing the credentials of our expanded organisation both nationally

and internationally.

UrbanGrowth NSW, originally Landcom, was created to address
market failure and deliver complex, strategic projects that help
realise the NSW Government’s urban and regional development
objectives. Tasked with a four-year program to deliver 10,000
home sites across Western Sydney, | am proud to say that in
March 2015, our 10,000th home site was delivered, three
months ahead of schedule.

Projects in the 10,000 home sites program have won a

range of industry awards. These projects are helping to

create thriving new communities and supporting infrastructure
across Sydney, while also addressing the state’s critical

need for housing.

The NSW Government has recognised our capability to deliver
government priorities, and has subsequently tasked us with a

20,000 home sites target for the next four years. We welcome
this responsibility and the opportunities it presents.

We are also intersecting our work with the NSW Department
of Planning and Environment’s Metropolitan Strategy (A Plan
for Growing Sydney 2014). By being a critical component in the
plan’s delivery, we are now firmly positioned to lead a portfolio
of complex major urban transformation projects. This comes
with the responsibility to address housing supply and economic
objectives, while contributing to the NSW Government’s vision
for Sydney and NSW.

This Annual Report shows the solid headway we have achieved
as we continue to transition our focus towards urban
transformation programs along transit corridors. In the past
year we have brought a number of strategic sites to market
that will enable a diverse range of housing opportunities,

drive economic growth, and deliver unique urban spaces.

This is particularly evident at projects like Green Square, where
our work has enabled successful private sector engagement —
and at Wentworth Point, and Lachlan’s Line, where we are
moving towards similar outcomes.

We have maintained our tradition of meeting or exceeding
our financial targets, achieving a net profit after tax of
$127.2 million, and returning $129.9 million in dividend
and tax equivalent payments back to government.

This year Bonita Boezeman completed her tenure with the
Board, and | thank her for her four years of service. | would
also like to welcome two new Board members, Karen Penrose
and Ken Maher, who both bring unique and invaluable
experience and perspective to our organisation.

Our success is very much a team effort. | acknowledge my
fellow Directors, and the work of the Chief Executive Officer
and supporting corporate management team. | would also
like to thank staff across the organisation who bring their
talent and unwavering passion to work each day.

Finally, I acknowledge the support and confidence that we have
enjoyed from the NSW Government, in particular the Premier,
our Portfolio Minister and Shareholder Ministers. Their
continued support is essential to our success.

We consider it a privilege to lead and deliver these important,
city-shaping projects. As ever, we take pride in our work and
are driven to be an exemplar of world’s best practice in

what we do.

Yours sincerely,

John Brogden AM
Chairman




CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REVIEW

Chief Executive Officer’s

review

The past year has been highly productive for UrbanGrowth NSW as we

continued to advance our mandate through a large portfolio of projects. We have strengthened
our organisational structure, strategy, and processes, and | believe we are now in the right position
to move to the next phase of our urban transformation programs.

A main focus this year has been on advocating and consulting
on our urban transformation projects with industry experts,
local residents, and the broader public. One of the more visible
demonstrations of this work was on The Bays Precinct, an

80 hectare site of largely government-owned land around

94 hectares of waterways that offers a remarkable

opportunity for Sydney’s future.

A series of world class activities kicked off with the Premier
announcing the International Summit, followed by Discovery
Day, an open day attended by 25,000 Sydneysiders. We also
held the Sydneysiders Summit and The Call for Great Ideas,
with both initiatives giving people the opportunity to share their
vision, aspirations, and ideas for The Bays Precinct. Expansive
feedback will ensure the transformation plan we present to the
NSW Government in October 2015 is world class and will

lead to the creation of a place that is globally relevant and
locally cherished.

We have also undertaken significant public participation on
our Central to Eveleigh and Newcastle programs, engaging and
consulting with local residents on our early thinking and draft
proposals. The further refinement of our transformation
strategies and transition to an operational phase, as seen

at Green Square, reflects the process that will catalyse the
creation of vibrant places with access to improved public
transport and better public domain — outcomes we aim to
deliver across our entire portfolio.

At Green Square, ongoing masterplanning and partnerships
with government agencies and the private sector have led

to the commencement of infrastructure and civil works, and
three residential releases of more than 450 apartment sales.

Another important part of our work is developing collaborative
relationships and partnerships with government agencies and
councils. This is particularly evident on our Parramatta Road
program where we are working with nine local councils, and at
Airds Bradbury where we are partnering with the NSW Land
and Housing Corporation on the long-term rejuvenation of the
public housing estate.

Across our wholesale projects our ongoing work with
government agencies to rezone, de-risk, masterplan, and
deliver lead-in infrastructure will unlock more than a billion
dollars worth of underused government-owned land for
private sector development. Projects including Lachlan’s Line,
Wentworth Point, and Edmondson Park Town Centre will
ultimately deliver facilities for local communities, and critical
new housing and jobs for NSW.

As highlighted in the Chairman’s review, the 10,000 home
sites program was achieved three months ahead of schedule.
This achievement is simply outstanding. | cannot overstate
the scale of work delivered by our passionate staff and the
positive impact it has had in shaping new communities
across Western Sydney.

The new 20,000 home sites target set for us by the NSW
Government over the next four years is a challenge we will
proudly work to achieve. By enabling projects, we will
accelerate new housing supply that promotes choice and
affordability to meet the needs of growing Sydney and

the changing lifestyles of its residents.

This target is only a small aspect of our work. Over the
coming 20 years our projects will enable up to 170,000
new homes in metropolitan Sydney. These will be part of
great places underpinned by our sustainability framework.
More information on this will be included in our forthcoming
Sustainability Report.

Within our organisation, | am pleased to recognise the
ongoing work of my corporate management team and
welcome two new members: Jillian Khoo, General Counsel,
and John Richmond, General Manager of Commercial
Management. These appointments, along with the promotion
of Julian Frecklington to Chief Operating Officer, bring further
rigour to our strategic capability. | am also proud of the gender
diversity we now have across the management team and
broader business.

Finally, my sincere thanks must be given to the outstanding
contribution, passion and dedication of our staff. Each

day they live our values by being visionary, courageous,
collaborative and accountable. As a consequence, their efforts
contribute to the broader cause of positively shaping our cities
and creating value for the people and economy of NSW.

The year ahead promises to be exciting, and one in which
we will continue to meet the tasks set for us by the NSW
Government, while aiming to strengthen our international
networks and set a world class benchmark for urban
transformation in Australia.

Yours sincerely,

David Pitchford CBE LVO
Chief Executive Officer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors

John Brogden AM
Chairman, appointed January 2012

John Brogden is currently the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer

of the Australian Institute of

Company Directors.

Prior to this, John was CEO of the
Financial Services Council from 2009 to
2015. He has also been CEO of
Manchester Unity and the Chairman of
Abacus Australian Mutuals. From 1996
to 2005, John was the Member for
Pittwater in the NSW Parliament. In
2002, John was elected Leader of the
Opposition — the youngest person ever
to hold the role and lead a major
political party in Australia.

John is the Chairman of Lifeline
Australia, Furlough House Retirement
Village, The Broken Bay Institute, and
a former Non-Executive Director of NIA
(trading as health.com.au). John is also
the patron of Sailability Pittwater,
Bilgola Surf Lifesaving Club, Avalon
Beach Surf Lifesaving Club, and
Kookaburra Kids.

John is a Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors and
holds a Masters of Public Affairs from
the University of Sydney.

Robert Hamilton
Appointed February 2011

Robert Hamilton’s career spans over
50 years in the property industry. After
founding and running Hamilton & Co
Real Estate for more than 10 years,
Robert co-founded The Mirvac Group
in 1972, retiring as Managing Director
in 2005.

Over the course of his career Robert
has been involved in a number of major
urban renewal projects throughout
Australia and NSW including Walsh Bay
and the Olympic Village. He has also
overseen the development of more than
25,000 residential dwellings as well

as many commercial office buildings,
shopping centres, hotels and

industrial complexes.

Robert is an Advisory Board Member
for the Salvation Army and advises a
number of charitable organisations. He
is regularly called on to provide property

advice across the development industry.

Robert is a Fellow of the Australian
Property Institute and a member
of the Real Estate Institute of Australia.

Ken Maher
Appointed December 2014

Ken Maher is an architect, landscape
architect, and urban design advocate.
He is a former executive chairman

of HASSELL, Australia’s largest
international multidisciplinary

design practice.

Ken is currently a HASSELL Fellow and
a Professor of Practice in the Faculty
of Built Environment at the University
of NSW. He is also a Director of the
Australian Institute of Architects
Foundation, CRC for Low Carbon Living,
and IBL Limited. He is Chair of the City
of Sydney’s Urban Design Advisory
Panel, and a member of the Sydney
Opera House Eminent Architects Panel
and the Transport for NSW Urban
Domain Reference Group.

Ken is the National President,

a Director, and a Life Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Architects, and
President of the Australian Sustainable
Built Environment Council. He is also a
Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Landscape Architects, the Australian
Property Institute, and the Green
Building Council of Australia. Ken holds
a Bachelor of Architecture with first
class honours, a Masters of
Architecture, a Graduate Diploma of
Landscape Design, and a Graduate
Diploma of Environmental Studies. In
2009, Ken was awarded the Australian
Institute of Architects Gold Medal.




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Karen Penrose
Appointed August 2014

Karen Penrose has over 30 years
business experience across finance,
property, and resources, including 20
years in banking with CBA and HSBC
Bank Australia. More recently, she has
held Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer roles with Wilson
HTM Investment Group and

Keybridge Capital.

Karen is a Non-Executive Director

of Federation Limited, AWE Limited,
Spark Infrastructure Group, Federation
Centres, Future Generation Global
Investment Company Limited, and
Marshall Investments Pty Ltd. She

is a former Non-Executive Director of

Novion Limited and Silver Chef Limited.

Karen is a member of CPA Australia,
a Graduate Member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors, and
holds a Bachelor of Commerce.

Matthew Quinn
Appointed August 2013

Matthew Quinn was the Managing
Director of Stockland from 2000 to
2013. Matthew’s management career
with Stockland spanned 12 years,
and he has an extensive background
in commercial, retail, industrial and
residential property investment

and development.

Matthew is a Non-Executive Director of
CSR Limited and Chairman of Carbonxt
Group Limited. He is actively involved in
education initiatives for disadvantaged
students, and is a Director of the
Australian Business and Community
Network Foundation.

Matthew is a Charted Accountant,

and a Fellow of the Australian Property
Institute, and of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors. He has a first
class honours degree in Chemistry and
Management Science from Imperial
College, London.

Bonita Boezeman AO*
Appointed February 2011

Bonita Boezeman worked for Time
Warner Inc. for 23 years in Europe and
Australia, including over 12 years as
Managing Director of Time Life, South
Pacific. Bonita’s experience covers
marketing, finance, strategy, retail,
internet, gaming, entertainment, and
over 12 years as a director in the
government property sector.

Bonita was founding Chairman of
PayPal Australia and currently chairs
Poli Payments, and an internet start-up
called ShopReply. She is also on the
board of Centric Wealth, and not-for-
profits the Order of Australia Foundation
Association, ARS Musica Australis,
NSW Olympic Committee, and The

East West Foundation.

Bonita was made an Officer in the Order
of Australia in 2003 and was awarded
the Centenary Medal in the same year.
Bonita has a PMD diploma from

Harvard Business School.

*Retired February 2015.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Corporate management team

David Pitchford CBE LVO
Chief Executive Officer

David was appointed Chief Executive
Officer of UrbanGrowth NSW in
September 2013. David oversees
the direction and ambition of the
organisation, and interfaces with
portfolio ministers and the Board.
He has more than 35 years of
experience as the head of public
and private organisations.

In 2007 David was General Manager

of Palm Jumeirah City in Dubai, one of
the world’s most ambitious development
projects. His most recent role was as
the Executive Director and Head of
Profession, Project Management,

for the United Kingdom’s Major

Projects Authority.

David began his career in the Office
of the Tasmanian Governor and then
moved into Chief Executive Officer
roles with the Australian Centenary
of Federation and the City of
Melbourne. He was also Chief
Operating Officer of the 2006
Melbourne Commonwealth Games.

David has been recognised as a
Commander of the Order of the British
Empire (CBE) and Lieutenant of the
Royal Victorian Order (LVO).

Julian Frecklington
Chief Operating Officer

Julian joined UrbanGrowth NSW in

January 2013 as Head of Strategy,
and was appointed Chief Operating
Officer in April 2015.

Julian is responsible for establishing
the strategy for UrbanGrowth NSW,
and for building the organisational
capabilities and funding platform

to deliver it.

Julian has over 15 years experience

in the real estate sector and a diverse
background in strategy, property, and
law. He has worked for a number of
Australia’s leading developers including
Stockland and Multiplex Brookfield, and
has held senior management positions
in funds management, business
development, and project delivery.
Julian has also worked as a finance
lawyer at Clayton Utz and as a strategy
consultant at Bain & Company.

Julian holds a Bachelor of Engineering
(Honours 1), Bachelor of Laws, Masters
of Business Administration, and is a
Graduate Member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors.

Peter Anderson*
Head of Wholesale Projects

Peter leads and manages UrbanGrowth
NSW’s Wholesale project teams in
creating development-ready
opportunities for the private sector.
Peter has over 30 years experience in
the property industry, having worked in
government, private consultancy, and
development organisations.

Peter provides strategic development
advice to NSW Planning and
Environment, NSW Department

of Finance, Services and Innovation,
NSW Land and Housing Corporation,
NSW Department of Premier and
Cabinet, and other government
agencies.

Peter started with UrbanGrowth
NSW in 2006, working as a Business
Development Director.

Before joining UrbanGrowth NSW,
Peter worked as a Senior Development
Director for Stockland Residential
Communities, and was Director of
Anderson Projects NSW. Peter holds

a Bachelor of Commerce (Land
Economics), a Certificate of
Management, and is a qualified
Engineering Surveyor.

*Left position September 2015.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Michael Brodie
Chief Financial Officer

Michael joined UrbanGrowth NSW in
March 2010 as the Chief Financial
Officer and manages the finance, risk,
IT, procurement, and business service
functions. Michael is an experienced
CFO with over 25 years of senior
financial and commercial experience
in investment, aged care, and property
development organisations.

Michael previously held senior
finance positions including National
Manager — Property Finance at
Woolworths Limited, DCA Aged Care,
and RG Capital.

Michael has a Bachelor of Economics,
and a Graduate Certificate in Financial
Planning. He is also a Chartered
Accountant and a Graduate Member
of the Australian Institute of

Company Directors.

Jillian Khoo
General Counsel

Jillian was appointed as General
Counsel in January 2015. Jillian is
the organisation’s key legal adviser,
and leads a team of solicitors

and paralegals.

Jillian has worked across multiple
Australian jurisdictions and a variety
of real estate sectors. She has

a strong background in project specific
financing, development, and joint
ventures, with expertise in managing
a variety of internal and external
stakeholders including government.

Jillian spent eight years with Australand,
most recently as the National Head of
Legal Services for the Residential
Division, and previously as the General
Manager Legal - Corporate. She worked
at Mallesons Stephen Jacques (now
King and Wood Mallesons) for nine
years, specialising in structured
property finance, capital partnerships
and development. Jillian holds a
Bachelor of Laws, and a Bachelor

of Arts (Politics).

Simon Pagett
Head of Urban
Transformation Division

Simon joined UrbanGrowth NSW

in March 2014 as the Head of the
Urban Transformation Division,
overseeing the delivery of the major
urban transformation portfolio. Simon
has over 25 years of experience in
the property industry working with
Lend Lease.

Simon has a depth of operational
and strategic experience in building
and leading teams that manage

a diverse portfolio of large scale
infrastructure and urban renewal
projects with complex

approval processes.

In his time with Lend Lease, Simon
filled a variety of senior roles, including
managing the Communities Portfolio
for NSW/ACT, General Manager,
Development (Retirement Living and
Aged Care), and Chief Operating Officer
of Lend Lease Residential.

Simon has held senior positions on high
profile projects including Brisbane’s new
International Airport Terminal and the
Sydney 2000 Olympic Village. Simon
has a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil
Engineering), and is a licensed Real
Estate Agent.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Corporate management team

John Richmond
General Manager,
Commercial Management

John joined UrbanGrowth NSW in
April 2015 as General Manager,
Commercial Management.

John leads the Commercial Management
and Business Development functions of
UrbanGrowth NSW, and works across
acquisitions, project commercialisation,
investment reviews, business strategy
and capital transactions.

John has 15 years experience in the
property industry spanning architecture,
property development and investment
banking. John spent 9 years as a Lead
Real Estate Equities Analyst at Credit
Suisse and Merrill Lynch, and also
worked at Stockland as a Development
Manager and on acquisitions.

John holds a Masters of Business
Administration and a Bachelor of
Architecture, and is a member of the
Assets and Finance Committee for the
not-for-profit group Achieve Australia.

Lisa Rippon-Lee
Head of Corporate Affairs

Lisa joined UrbanGrowth NSW in March
2014, and is responsible for corporate
affairs and stakeholder engagement,
working to position the organisation
as the lead government agency in the
delivery of urban transformation
projects. Lisa is an experienced
communications and corporate
marketing professional, having

spent more than 20 years

in corporate affairs.

Lisa has worked in a range of multi-
national corporations across many
industry sectors, stakeholder groups,
markets, languages, and cultures.
Lisa’s previous roles have included
senior positions in communications and
corporate affairs at Glencore Xstrata,
Lend Lease, and The Nielsen Company.

Simone Westcott
General Manager,
Human Resources

Simone was appointed as General
Manager, Human Resources,

in September 2012. Simone has
more than 15 years experience in
human resources spanning a number
of industries including hospitality,
financial services, and property.

Simone commenced her human
resources career with Stamford Hotels
before transitioning into the property
industry and working at Jones Lang
LaSalle for seven years in roles
including Associate Director, HR. In
2007, Simone was at ING Real Estate
as Head of Human Resources,

a position that encompassed the
development, commercial banking, and
investment management businesses.

Simone has proven experience

in a range of human resources
disciplines including strategy, change
management, business restructuring,
payroll transition, and recruitment and
selection. Simone has a Diploma of
Human Resource Management, and
Advanced Certificate of Hospitality
and Catering.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Victoria White
General Manager,
Business Assurance

Victoria was appointed General
Manager, Business Assurance,

in March 2014. Victoria’s role is to
position the organisation to be a centre
of excellence for portfolio and project
planning, development, delivery,
governance, and collaboration.

Victoria was most recently a General
Manager at Infrastructure Australia,
where she collaborated with state and
federal governments and the private
sector to identify and assess multi-
billion dollar infrastructure projects.
She also prepared the National
Infrastructure Plan and was responsible
for delivering the National Infrastructure
Priority List.

Victoria has held senior advisory roles
at the NSW Department of Premier and
Cabinet and Infrastructure NSW, and
moved to Sydney to manage Sydney
Water’s capital investment program
from 2005 to 2009. She has a
Bachelor of Engineering (Chemical), a
Masters of Business Administration, a
Masters of Economics, and a Graduate
Diploma in Environmental Studies.

Robert Sullivan*
Head of Retail Transition

Robert joined the organisation

in November 2007. Robert’s role

as the Head of Retail Transition
oversees the transition of UrbanGrowth
NSW'’s business focus to major urban
transformation projects. He has over
25 years experience in sales and
marketing, including the position of
General Manager, Corporate Marketing,
at UrbanGrowth NSW for six years.

Robert has held other head of
marketing roles within the development,
gaming, entertainment, television, club,
and sports industries. He has worked
as the Senior Marketing Manager for
the Australian Jockey Club, Executive
Marketing Manager for Clubs NSW,

and Director, Sales and Marketing,

for Stargames Corporation Pty Ltd.

Robert holds a Masters in Management,
a Marketing Management Certificate,
and a Marketing Certificate.

*Left position July 2015.
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OUR ORGANISATION

Our organisation

Our projects
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OUR ORGANISATION

Our governance structure

NSW GOVERNMENT

The Hon. Rob Stokes MP, Portfolio Minister
The Hon. Gladys Berejiklian MP, The Hon. Dominic Perrottet MP, Shareholder Ministers

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsible for commercial success of UrbanGrowth NSW
Manages UrbanGrowth NSW in best interests of the Shareholder Ministers

AUDIT AND RISK
MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM

FY14/15 highlights
$647 mition  $1.30 million
Sales revenue Returned to the state government

(dividends and tax equivalent payments)

$127 milion 5,187

Net profit after tax Dwellings released
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THIS YEAR’S ACHIEVEMENTS
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We held The Bays Precinct Sydney Discovery Day
in April 2015, which was attended by 25,000 people.

The Bays Precinct Sydney Discovery Day, April 2015.




HIGHLIGHTS OF THIS YEAR’S ACHIEVEMENTS

Highlights of

this year’s achievements

Significant work during the past year has alighed our organisation’s focus towards major urban
transformation programs. These programs are complex in nature and long term in delivery.
They will create world class urban places close to public transport, with new housing choices,

community facilities, and jobs.

Major urban transformation
programs

Our main emphasis has been on defining ambition and intent.
This allowed us to engage with the public and collaborate with
government, and position the programs to commence
on-the-ground works in the coming year.

Engaging with the public

Following the success of The Bays Precinct Sydney —
International Summit in November 2014, we held The Bays
Precinct Sydney Discovery Day and the Sydneysiders Summit
and Leadership Forums in April 2015. Discovery Day was
attended by 25,000 people.

We released Transforming City Living: The Bays Precinct

at the Sydneysiders Summit, a discussion paper for public
comment that identified the ambition, goals and possibilities
for The Bays Precinct. We also launched The Call for Great
Ideas in May 2015, which provided an opportunity for anyone
with an interest in this critical area to contribute to the
transformation process.

The Central to Eveleigh program also undertook a series of
public participation events during the financial year, including
study nights and a day-long community workshop. Events were
designed to help share information about the principles and
approach of the transformation. These engagement

activities also captured feedback and will help inform

the transformation plan.

We held Design Newcastle, a two month-long community
engagement program, as part of the Newcastle Urban
Transformation and Transport Program. Design Newcastle
engaged with over 950 stakeholders, including individuals,
community groups, local council, and representatives from
government agencies.

Public participation also took place around the Draft
Parramatta Road Urban Renewal Strategy, which was
released in November 2014. To support the release,
we held two community information sessions and
opened a public display office.

The planning framework rezoning exhibition for the
Parramatta North Urban Transformation Program also
enabled us to undertake a series of public participation
events. A series of charrettes and council briefings ensured
that all stakeholders had an opportunity to feed their ideas
into the framework.

Collaborating with government, industry
and the private sector

Engaging and collaborating across government and industry
is critical to our work. During the financial year we continued
our collaboration with nine of the 10 councils along the
Parramatta Road Corridor under a formal Memorandum of
Understanding. This has also seen council officers seconded
to an integrated project team and working directly with
UrbanGrowth NSW and other government agencies.

Similarly, we worked with Transport for NSW on the Sydney
Metro North West program to start achieving best practice
transit-oriented development for when the Sydney Metro
begins operations in early 2019.

At Green Square construction started on the Town Centre in
February 2015 with a ground breaking ceremony for Ebsworth,
the centre’s first residential building, Through our development
partner, Mirvac, three residential releases totalling 450
apartments were brought to market. When completed, our
land holdings at the Town Centre will accommodate around
1,900 dwellings, 48,600 square metres of office space, plus
14,000 square metres of retail, and result in 6,000 jobs.

Looking ahead

Our main goal in the next financial year is to advance from
discussions and plans, taking into account the ideas and
concerns from all those we’ve worked with, and, move into
the reality of delivering world class urban places that Sydney
can be proud of.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THIS YEAR’S ACHIEVEMENTS

Wholesale projects

Our wholesale division progressed several
projects that will unlock the potential of surplus
or under-utilised government-owned land during
FY14/15. Our work will enable us to take to

the market land that will ultimately deliver

over 5,000 new home sites.

Enabling infrastructure and housing supply

A project that particularly reflects the opportunities and benefits
of our approach to partnering with the private sector is Thornton.
Delivered in a partnership with St Hilliers, this project is
transforming the Penrith CBD, enabling new housing, urban
living precincts and is a pioneering example of regional centre
living in the 21st century.

Thorton is recognised for its industry leading approach in
delivering compact housing, while the village centre will establish
a high density, urban living precinct in Penrith. The past year has
seen several key development milestones, including the sale

of the first apartments, as well as the delivery of a community
housing development with Evolve Housing. We also secured plans
for a seniors living and aged care facility, as well as the adaptive
reuse of Thornton Hall as a child care centre.

At Lachlan’s Line, we are the site masterplan developer, delivering
the required civil infrastructure, parks, roads and play areas.

In the past year we received development approvals for lead-in
infrastructure and civil works. We also completed the precinct’s
first super-lot sale—the Station North site—to Australand/
LaSalle. When completed, this project will provide 2,700 new
dwellings with parks, retail and public domain areas.

The Peninsula is located at the northern end of Wentworth Point,
and we are the site’s development manager on behalf of Roads
and Maritime Services (RMS). In FY14/15 the project received
$5 million in funding from the NSW Government’s Precinct
Support Scheme towards the design and construction of the
Peninsula Park, and a number of development applications

have been lodged with council around planned subdivisions

and infrastructure works.

At Edmondson Park we are leading the development of a new
regional centre on the new South West Rail Line. We released

an expressions of interest campaign for the Town Centre site,
and completed enabling infrastructure to provide services to over
3,000 lots, with the added benefit of catalysing development for
over 1,000 privately owned lots. We also worked with Transport
for NSW and other state agencies to complete the construction
of Soldiers Parade (the key link to the new Edmondson Park
Station), and two rail bridges. Our infrastructure and development
activity in the region is catalysing the development of fragmented
landholdings with a lot capacity of over 4,900.

Wentworth Point. Indicative artist impression.
Subject to change.
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Our work this financial year across our wholesale projects,
will enable us to take to the market land that will ultimately
deliver over 5,000 new home sites.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THIS YEAR’S ACHIEVEMENTS

The Ponds is now athriving community of over
' 12,000 residents and has won 11 Industry awards.

Lake's Edge Park; The Ponds!
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THIS YEAR’S ACHIEVEMENTS

Land development projects:
The 10,000 home sites program

We achieved a significant milestone for our organisation
in March of this year with the completion of the 10,000
home sites program.

Starting in 2011 and finishing three months ahead of schedule
demonstrates our desire to exceed expectations and deliver on the tasks
set by the NSW Government. The program was capped off by the successful
launch of our Newbrook project at Airds, which received an excellent
response from the market.

The early delivery of the program was only possible through effective
government and industry partnerships including those with councils,
government departments, power utilities, infrastructure providers like

RMS and Sydney Water, and a range of builders, contractors and developers.

One of our key industry partnerships came to fruition in June 2015 when
Australand delivered The Ponds Shopping Centre, which received a globally
recognised 6 Star Green Star — Retail Centre Design vl rating. This was the
final piece awaiting delivery in our masterplanned suburb, The Ponds, and
with the sale of all our lots, marked our completed engagement in the project.
The Ponds is now a thriving community of over 12,000 residents and has won
11 Industry awards, as well as the coveted title of ‘most advantaged suburb’
by the Australian Bureau of Statistics.

The largest contributor to the 10,000 home sites program was Oran Park with
more than 2,000 lots released over the four year period, with 669 of those
achieved in FY14/15. When completed Oran Park Town will be home to over
25,000 people living in 8,000 homes all centred around a modern new town
centre of over 30 hectares. Coinciding with the opening of the Town Centre,
during the year we commissioned the intersection of The Northern Road and
Peter Brock Drive. This significant piece of infrastructure provides a second
entrance into Oran Park Town and represents the first stage of The Northern
Road upgrade. We also started construction of Camden Council’s new

$35 million Central Administration Building, which will eventually house

400 employees within the Town Centre.

Supporting communities in need

We have also used our collaborative ties across government to contribute
to the goals of other government agencies. Our partnership with Ageing,
Disability and Home Care (ADHC) helped deliver housing for people within
their programs, including over 35 group homes that account for 200
beds/placements for people with a disability, along with acquiring 23
sites for construction.

We also worked with NSW Land and Housing Corporation to help renew
disadvantaged social housing estates through Newbrook at Airds and
One Minto. We also commenced works on the first stages of renewal

of the housing estate at Claymore. These projects positively impact the
demographic and social mix of these revitalised areas and enable critical
government services to be delivered.

Delivering economic returns

We have delivered on a key NSW Government directive to drive housing supply
for NSW while generating a return on investment for taxpayers. During the last
financial year we brought 5,187 releases to market, generating sales release
revenue of more than $1 billion.
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LOOKING AHEAD TO FY15/16

Looking ahead
to FY15/16

Organisational objectives:

— We will substantially progress our commitment to deliver 20,000 home sites by 2019.

— We will meet our financial targets as outlined in our Statement of Corporate Intent.

Project objectives: across the portfolio

pre W The Bays Precinct Lachlan’s Line

Release the Transformation
Plan by October 2015.

Parramatta Road

Release the Draft Transformation
Strategy for public display by
October 2015.

Newcastle

Achieve development
approval of the East End
development.

Parramatta North

Achieve precinct
rezoning.

Achieve the sale
of Stage 2.

The Peninsula

Complete the invitation
to tender.

South West Portfolio

Achieve the Sale of key
projects in South West Sydney.

Riverstone

Manage the second round
ballot of the Scheduled Lands.
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CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Our charter and function

UrbanGrowth NSW, a trading name of Landcom, is a state
owned corporation operating under the Landcom Corporation
Act 2001.

Our ambition is to ‘transform city living’ by creating world class
urban areas that are vibrant, connected, competitive and
resilient places to live and work. Our role is to act as the
master developer on complex urban transformation projects
which contain government land and support critical
infrastructure and economic clusters.

The NSW Government has established five key priorities
for UrbanGrowth NSW as it undertakes its tasks.

Ministerial statement of priorities
1. Drive increases in the supply of housing and jobs

2. Strengthen the NSW economy by delivering world-class
centres that attract investment and boost productivity

3. Optimise public investment in infrastructure through
integrating land use and transport planning

4. Operate on a commercially astute basis, seeking
a fair return for taxpayers

5. Promote public sector innovation through collaborating
across government, the private sector and the community
in the delivery of the portfolio.

Principal objectives

Our principal objectives under the Landcom Corporation Act
2001 are:

a. to be a successful business and, to this end:

i to operate at least as efficiently as any comparable
businesses, and

ii to maximise the net worth of the state’s investment in us.

b. to exhibit a sense of social responsibility by having regard
to the interests of the community in which we operate

c. to protect the environment by conducting our operations
in compliance with the principles of ecologically sustainable
development contained in section 6 (2) of the Protection of
the Environment Administration Act 1991

d. to exhibit a sense of responsibility towards regjonal
development and decentralisation in the way in which
we operate

e. to undertake, or assist the government in undertaking,
strategic or complex urban development projects

f. to assist the government in achieving its urban
management objectives

g. to be a responsible developer of residential, commercial
and industrial land.

Board of Directors,
meetings and committees

Board of Directors

Under the Landcom Corporation Act 2001 and the
constitution, the Board comprises seven Directors. The
current composition of the Board has five Directors with two
vacancies. The Directors are appointed by the Governor of
New South Wales on the recommendation of the Shareholder
Ministers and after consultation with the Portfolio Minister.

During the reporting period, the Directors were:
Mr John Brogden AM | Chairman
Mr Robert Hamilton

Mr Ken Maher
(appointed 15 December 2014)

Ms Karen Penrose
(appointed 25 August 2014)

Mr Matthew Quinn

Ms Bonita Boezeman AO
(retired 27 February 2015)

The gender breakdown for the Board at both the start and
end of the reporting period was 20% women and 80% men.

The Board’s role and responsibilities are contained in our
Corporate Governance Charter. This sets out the duties,
independence and ethical standards, and expectations of
individual Directors, including procedures for declaring
conflicts of interest.

The Board determines the composition and membership
of its committees. Each committee sets, reviews and
updates its terms of reference, which are reviewed and
approved by the Board.

Board meetings

The Board customarily meets on the fourth Friday of each
month, and holds additional meetings as required. The number
of meetings attended by each Director during the reporting
period, and the number of meetings each Director was eligible
to attend, were as follows:

Board meetings

Board meetings

Director attended eligible to attend
Mr J Brogden AM 13 15
Mr R Hamilton 14 15
Mr K Maher 8 9
Ms K Penrose 12 12
Mr M Quinn 13 15
Ms B Boezeman AO* 9 9

*Former Director
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Committee meetings

Directors participated in two committees during the reporting
period, the membership of which is reviewed annually.
Directors” membership of the committees at the end of

the reporting period was as follows:

Audit and Risk Management Committee*:
Ms Karen Penrose | Chair

Mr Ken Maher

Mr Matthew Quinn

*Ms Bonita Boezeman AO was Chair of the Committee, and
Mr Robert Hamilton was a member of the Committee, during
the reporting period.

Remuneration Committee:

All Directors

Measuring performance

We consider ourselves successful if we meet our goals
as outlined in our Ministerial statement of priorities
(see page 25).

Board performance review

The Board periodically reviews its performance to determine
the extent to which it has met its responsibilities under its
charter and to identify opportunities for continual
improvement. The review may also encompass the
performance of the Board’s committees and of individual
Directors.

The Board will approve a process for the review, which may
include its scope, performance measures (qualitative or
quantitative), and whether to engage an independent
consultant to conduct the review. A formal review of the
Board’s performance is planned to be undertaken in

the next period.

Performance management system

A performance management system is in place
to review the individual performance of all staff.

Risk management and insurance

Risk management

We are committed to good corporate governance and adopt
a methodical approach to the process and practice of risk
management. Our risk framework is consistent with the
Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard AS/NZS
ISO 31000:2009 and embodies the business principles
approach to corporate objectives.

To ensure our risk management process continues to work
effectively and creates value, we have:

* ensured the Board, Chief Executive Officer, senior
managers, and all staff have made a commitment to risk
management

enhanced the integration of risk management processes
within our business processes

assigned risk management responsibilities within
the organisation

refined our risk framework and improved guidelines on risk
tolerance and reporting accountability

allocated appropriate resources to the training and
development of relevant stakeholders in enhanced risk
awareness and continual improvement.

Our risk management and performance review processes aim
to minimise the consequences of events that could adversely
affect our reputation and our ability to achieve targets. Our risk
management framework includes:

* regular Board reviews of risks to the organisation

* an internal audit program supported by reviews by
independent certifiers

* reviews of the financial capacity of our partners.

The Board’s Audit and Risk Management Committee consists
of non-executive Directors and is attended by management
representatives as well as independent experts and observers.
The committee regularly considers risk matters arising from
internal and external audits as well as independent
assessments of performance against our Environmental
Management System.

Business continuity

Our Business Continuity Plan is designed to minimise adverse
impacts on our staff, stakeholders and business operations in
the event of a major incident or disaster.

Periodic testing of the plan focuses on rehearsing likely
business disruption scenarios such as workplace recovery,
response to iliness issues, and any impacts on critical
business functions such as communications, project data,
land titles data, property conveyance and sales processing,
and payables and receivables processing.

Insurance

Our insurance cover is provided by the NSW Treasury Managed
Fund. This fund is based on the principles of self insurance
and prioritises the implementation of sound risk management
practice. The self-insurance scheme is administered by GIO
General for risks relating to motor vehicle, property, public
liability, and directors/officers liability. Workers Compensation
Insurance is administered by Allianz Australia under the
Treasury Managed Fund.

We completed our FY15/16 Renewal Declarations for the
Treasury Managed Fund in November 2014 and renewed all
policies for the FY15/16 policy period.
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PUinC access tO information In FY14/15, 14 applications were decided as follows:
and the protection Of privacy * Two applications were granted in full.

* Nine were partly refused because:
- there were overriding public interest considerations against

Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 disclosure of some of the information (as listed in either the
(GIPA Act) - Formal access applications Section 14 Table of the GIPA Act or in Schedule 1 of the
During the reporting period, 14 formal access applications GIPA Act)

were received under the Government Information (Public - some of the information was not held

Access) Act 2009 (GIPA Act). One of these applications was - some of the information was already publicly available
originally invalid but became valid after the applicant provided - three applications were partly refused because the

more information. application was for the disclosure of information referred

The processing period in the GIPA Act allowed for one {o/in Schedule 1 of the GIPA Act.

application received in FY13/14 to be carried forward into * Three applications were refused in full. Two of these
FY14/15. The processing period also allowed for one decision were because they requested information not held
received in FY14/15 to extend into FY15/16. by UrbanGrowth NSW.

The following tables contain statistical information

about the formal access applications received in FY14/15.

Table A | Number of applications by type of applicant and outcome*

Access Access Access Information Information Refuse to Refuse to confirm Application

granted granted refused not held already deal with /deny whether withdrawn
infull inpart infull available application information is held

Media S 4 4 5 1 0 0 0
Members of Parliament 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0
Private sector business 0 0 (0] 0 0 1 0 0

Not for proflt organisations or 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
community groups

Members of the public

(by legal representative) - = 0 L 0 0 0 0
Members of the public (other) 2 2 1 1 1 0 0 0

* More than one decision can be made in respect of a particular access application. If so, a recording must be made in relation to each such decision.

Table B | Number of applications by type of application and outcome*

Access Access Access Information Information Refuseto Refuse to confirm Application

granted granted refused not held already deal with /deny whether withdrawn
infull inpart infull available application information is held
Personal information applications** 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Access applications (other than
PP ( 8 6 8 2 il 0 0

personal information applications)

Access applications that are partly
personal information applications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
and partly other

* More than one decision can be made in respect of a particular access application. If so, a recording must be made in relation to each such decision.
** A personal information application is an access application for personal information (as defined in clause 4 of Schedule to the Act) about the applicant
(the applicant being an individual).

Table C | Invalid applications

Reason for invalidity: Number of applications

Application does not comply with formal requirements (section 41 of the Act) 1

Application is for excluded information of the agency (section 43 of the Act)

Total number of invalid applications received

0
Application contravenes restraint order (section 110 of the Act) 0
1
1

Invalid applications that subsequently became valid applications
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Table D | Conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against disclosure: matters listed in Schedule 1 of the Act*

Number of times consideration used

Overriding secrecy laws 0
Cabinet information 2
Executive council information 0
Contempt 0
Legal professional privilege 1
Excluded information 0
Documents affecting law enforcement and public safety 0
Transport safety 0
Adoption 0
Care and protection of children 0
Ministerial code of conduct 0
Aboriginal and environmental heritage 0

* More than one public Interest consideration may apply in relation to a particular access application and if so, each such consideration is to be recorded
(but only once per application).

Table E | Other public interest considerations against disclosure: matters listed in table to section 14 of the Act*

Number of times consideration used

Responsible and effective government 8
Law enforcement and security 0
Individual rights, judicial processes and natural justice 4
Business interests of agencies and other persons 9
Environment, culture, economy and general matters 5
Secrecy provisions 0
Exempt documents under interstate Freedom of Information legislation 0

* More than one public Interest consideration may apply in relation to a particular access application and if so, each such consideration is to be recorded
(but only once per application).

Table F | Timelines

Number of applications

Decided within the statutory timeframe (20 days plus any extensions) 14
Decided after 35 days (by agreement with applicant) 0
Not decided within time (deemed refusal) 0

Table G | Number of applications reviewed under Part 5 of the Act (by type of review and outcome)

. . Decision
Decision varied
upheld
Internal review 0 0
Review by Information Commissioner* 0 0
Internal review following recommendation under section 93 of Act 0 0
Review by NCAT 0 0

* The Information Commissioner does not have the authority to vary decisions, but can make recommendations to the original decision-maker. The data in this case indicates that a
recommendation to vary or uphold the original decision has been made by the Information Commissioner.
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Table H | Applications for review under Part 5 of the Act (by type of applicant)

Number of applications for review

Applications by access applicants

Applications by persons to whom information the subject of access application relates

(see section 54 of the Act)

0

Table | | Applications transferred to other agencies

Number of applications transferred

Agency-initiated transfers

0

Application-initiated transfers

0

Authorised proactive release of information
under S.7 (3) of GIPA Act 2009

Our program for the proactive release of information involves
regularly updating the UrbanGrowth NSW website, the
Landcom website and individual project websites to provide
information regarding our policies, projects and initiatives. We
also consider commonly requested categories of information
and the impact, if any, of proactively releasing this information
as is required by Section 7 of the GIPA Act.

During the year, we:

* considered the formal access applications received
* considered the informal applications received

* considered whether there were any particular categories
of information that were being regularly or repeatedly
requested in the formal applications

consulted with our staff about information and categories
of information that are frequently requested through team
meetings, staff inductions and GIPA briefings and updates.

In addition, where we can, we share our knowledge freely
within government, throughout the development industry and
among the public. This practice is an effective way to build and
maintain credibility and demonstrate and influence change.
Recent examples include:

* We regularly updated the UrbanGrowth NSW website with
the release of new and updated information on our new
role, current activities and policies.

* We published the Living Cities eNewsletter
which information and updates on our urban
transformation projects.

We will review this requirement for proactive release of
information within the next financial year.

Privacy

We are committed to protecting the personal information of
the public, our business partners, purchasers and staff. We do
this by ensuring that our activities comply with the NSW
Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998 (PPIP
Act) and the NSW Health Records Information Protection Act
2002 (HRIP Act).

Our privacy management plan is based on 12 information
protection principles of the PPIP Act, which establish
standards for collecting, storing, using and disclosing
personal information.

These are:

PRINCIPLE 1 (S.8 PPIP Act)

Collection of personal information for lawful purposes.
PRINCIPLE 2 (S.9 PPIP Act)

Collection of personal information directly from the individual.
PRINCIPLE 3 (S.10 PPIP Act)

Requirements when collecting personal information.
PRINCIPLE 4 (S.11 PPIP Act)

Other requirements relating to collection
of personal information.

PRINCIPLE 5 (S.12 PPIP Act)

Retention and security of personal information.
PRINCIPLE 6 (S.13 PPIP Act)

Information about personal information held by agencies.
PRINCIPLE 7 (S.14 PPIP Act)

Access to personal information held by agencies.
PRINCIPLE 8 (S.15 PPIP Act)

Alteration of personal information.

PRINCIPLE 9 (S.16 PPIP Act)

Agency must check accuracy of personal information
before use.

PRINCIPLE 10 (S.17 PPIP Act)

Limits on use of personal information.

PRINCIPLE 11 (S.18 PPIP Act)

Limits on disclosure of personal information.

PRINCIPLE 12 (S.19 PPIP Act)

Special restrictions on disclosure of personal information.

No complaints were received about the use of personal
information during the reporting year.

Our Right to Information Officer and Privacy Coordinator
can be contacted by writing to:

UrbanGrowth NSW
PO Box 237
Parramatta NSW 2124

Or by emailing:

righttoinfo@urbangrowth.nsw.gov.au, or
enquiry@urbangrowth.nsw.gov.au.
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Public Interest Disclosures Act 1994

The following table contains information about our obligations
under Section 31 of the Public Interest Disclosures Act 1994.

Section 31 Report

Public interest disclosures made by

public officials in performing their 0

day to day functions

Public interest disclosures not covered by

(1) that are made under a statutory or 0

other legal obligation

All other public interest disclosures 2

Number of public interest disclosures we

received relating to:

i. Corrupt conduct 2

ii. Maladministration 0

iii. Serious and substantial waste of 0
public money

iv. Government information 0
contraventions

v. Local government pecuniary interest 0
contraventions

Total 2

Number of public interest disclosures we 1

finalised

Whether we have a public interest Yes

disclosures policy in place

Action taken by us to ensure that our ¢ Staff training during

staff awareness responsibilities induction

under s 6E(1)(b) of the Act have
been met

staff indicating that
they have read

and understood
our internal
reporting policy
messages on
intranet

Legal events

Lachlan’s Line — exclusion of Meriton due
to a potential conflict of interest

In May 2015, Meriton filed a motion seeking an interlocutory
injunction to restrain the tender process in respect to Lachlan’s
Line after UrbanGrowth NSW had excluded Meriton from
participating in the future stage of the tender. The decision

to exclude was made following Meriton’s employment of an
UrbanGrowth NSW development director who had been closely
involved in the Lachlan’s Line tender evaluation process. This
decision was made in the interest of fairness to all parties
involved. In a preliminary judgment, the NSW Supreme Court
dismissed Meriton’s attempt to stop UrbanGrowth NSW from
continuing the tender process until a broader case over
Meriton’s exclusion was resolved. Meriton subsequently
decided not to pursue the broader case and the proceedings
were dismissed.

Fisherman’s Bay

In May 2015, judicial review proceedings were commenced
in the Land & Environment Court against Landcom and the
Hunter Central Coast Joint Regional Planning Panel (JRPP)
by a local community action group. They were seeking to
invalidate a development consent granted by the JRPP and
restrain Landcom from acting on the consent on grounds
relating to local threatened species. A direction from the
Minister to surrender the development consent negated
the need for the proceedings to continue.

Hunter Development Corporation v Save Our Rail
Court of Appeal Proceedings

In December 2014, UrbanGrowth NSW facilitated Hunter
Development Corporation’s participation and funded the cost
of litigation after proceedings were commenced against the
Transport for NSW (TfNSW) and the Hunter Development
Corporation (HDC) by the Save Our Rail group against the
closure of the Newcastle to Sydney heavy rail line. Save our
Rail sought to challenge the government’s authority to remove
heavy rail infrastructure between Newcastle and Wickham
without an Act of Parliament. The Supreme Court ruled that
the NSW Government needed to pass an act of parliament but
TfNSW and HDC appealed, and this matter was heard in the
New South Wales Court of Appeal on 15 and 16 July 2015.
We are awaiting judgement.
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Work health and safety

We provide a safe and healthy work environment for
employees, clients, and stakeholders. This is highlighted by
our commitment to continuous improvement in work health
and safety (WHS), which is achieved through effective
planning, consultation, program implementation, training,
monitoring, and review.

We frequently improve our WHS framework, and
integrate safety behaviours and responsibilities into
our capabilities framework.

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for our WHS system,
with underpinning processes managed by the Chief Audit &
Risk Executive. We operate a WHS Consultation Committee
with staff volunteers and nominated management
representatives in accordance with our WHS policy. The
committee meets quarterly to review previously raised issues,
new issues and any near-miss incidents brought to its notice.

The WHS system and processes enable:

* a forum for employees and management to openly
discuss concerns

* a regime of prevention, inspection, identification and
reduction of hazards

* a philosophy of continuous improvement

* hazard identification inspections at all employee locations
using defined checklists

* maintenance of an actions database to monitor the status
of hazard elimination or mitigation.

There were no lost time injuries at sites under our direct
control during the reporting period.

Multicultural policies and services
program

Ethnic affairs priorities statement

The NSW Government recognises and values the different
linguistic, religious, racial and ethnic backgrounds of all
the people in NSW and requires agencies, including
UrbanGrowth NSW, to prepare ethnic affairs priorities
statements to manage multiculturalism.

Our ethnic affairs priorities are delivered through community
consultation before and during the development and
marketing/sales phases of projects. We communicate

with the community through our Community Welcome

and Development Programs and through stakeholder
engagement programs.

Our Community Welcome program provides services and
‘'welcome’ visits to the homes of customers who move into our
developments. Welcome Kits provided to new residents include
information about local culturally and linguistically diverse
(CALD) organisations, services for CALD residents and
information on how to access free interpreter services.

Over the past year, program facilitators made contact with over
1,500 households in nine new housing developments. The
Ponds, One Minto, Bunya and Potts Hill have the highest
proportion of CALD residents (for example, in The Ponds, over
50% of the population was born overseas). Initiatives to assist
community members and bring different community groups
together included culturally themed welcome events, Harmony
Day events, culturally appropriate catering and employing staff
from CALD backgrounds.

Harmony Day events were held in March 2015 as part of our
programs in Blacktown, Campbelltown and Camden. These
celebrated each community’s diversity and multiculturalism.
38% of Blacktown residents and 28% of Campbelltown
residents were born overseas (ABS 2011).

During the year we also continued our Walking School Bus
program, with six schools participating in north west Sydney.
This program delivers positive health and environmental
outcomes, with regular participation from over 300 students.
It is estimated that up to half the participants come from
CALD backgrounds.

To better inform these activities, we conduct a new resident
survey to capture basic demographic information and obtain
feedback on our sales and marketing processes. The survey
asks residents for information on their own and their parents’
country of birth to help us prepare future sales and marketing
campaigns and community development programs.

Our corporate affairs staff provide guidance to project teams
on community engagement. We also have a Stakeholder
Consultation Workbook that includes information on engaging
members of ethnic minority groups, including the provision of
interpreters and written translation services. This workbook is
currently being updated.

Promotional materials for our residential developments and
engagement activities include information about the availability
of interpreter and translation services. Posters detailing the
Department of Immigration and Multicultural Affairs’ translating
and interpreting services are also on display in our sales
offices. Where appropriate, marketing campaigns for individual
projects target specific CALD groups identified through market
research as potential purchasers.

We select staff on merit and advocate for the principles

of cultural diversity. In addition, staff training incorporates
cross-cultural components. Over the next two years, we will
continue to implement and review our performance against our
ethnic affairs priorities statement.
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Ethnic Affairs Key Result

Area

Initiative

Strategies/
Tasks

Respons-

ibility Budget

Resources/ Performance

Indicators

Report
2014-2015

Goals for
2015-2016

Develop and Social Justice Provide Head of Division 100% of 100% of 100% of current
implement [1.9 Planning engagement Corporate budget projects. current projects projects to report
stakeholder for Cultural consultation Affairs implemented on implemented
engagement Diversity] opportunities community community
plans. at project engagement engagement

planning stages, activities. activities.

via Welcome

Programs or

Community

Development

activities.
Provide Social Justice Review current  Head of Marketing  Review Translating and Provide references
information [1.7 Access marketing and  Corporate budget completed interpreting services to translation
about interpreter to Interpreters sales material Affairs (timeliness) information provided and interpreting
and translation ~ and for appropriate in all sales offices.  services in
services in Translators] information. Interpreters used for marketing and
all relevant specific community community
UrbanGrowth meetings. information.
NSW marketing
and sales
material.
Use ABS census  Social Justice Arrange for Head of Project Annual review Census and Initiate a minimum
data to identify ~ [1.7 Access access to Corporate budgets of ABS census  project survey of one Community
languages to interpreters interpreter and  Affairs data data reviewed Development
spoken by and translation (timeliness) for UrbanGrowth project or event
emerging translators] services at NSW projects to in each Welcome
communities in Community identify major CALD ~ Program that
UrbanGrowth Development communities. addresses the
NSW projects. and Community needs and interests

Engagement of identified CALD

events and groups.

activities.
CALD community Social Justice Facilitate Head of Project Number A CALD community  Encourage CALD
based [1.9 Planning information Corporate budgets of CALD based organisation = community based
organisations for sessions prior to Affairs community (Macarthur Diversity organisations to
actively Cultural the expressions based Services Inc) is tender for delivery
encouraged Diversity] of interest organisations currently delivering  of UrbanGrowth
to tender for process (EOI), submitting EOls  UrbanGrowth NSW ~ NSW Welcome
the delivery of outlining the for the delivery  Welcome Program Programs in
UrbanGrowth role and benefit of new Welcome at Minto. projects with
NSW Welcome of UrbanGrowth Programs. anticipated high
Programs in new NSW Welcome percentage of
estates. Programs. CALD residents.
Identify Social Justice Undertake Head of Marketing  Consultation Harmony Day and Plan and deliver
strategies [1.9 Planning  consultation Corporate and/or undertaken with cultural activities specific initiatives
to increase for Cultural with CALD Affairs project CALD residents delivered in for CALD families
participation by  Diversity] residents in budgets and strategies  UrbanGrowth NSW  and young people
CALD residents established included in projects with a high in Welcome
in UrbanGrowth UrbanGrowth project based percentage of CALD and Community
NSW Welcome NSW community families and young  Development
Programs. communities. activities people (Minto, The  programs.

(timeliness). Ponds, Bunya, Potts
Hill and Edmondson
Park).

Develop Community Invite CALD Head of Division Partnerships Macarthur Diversity ~ Continue to develop
strategic Harmony organisations Corporate budget established and Services Inc and partnerships that
partnerships [2.1 to submit Affairs maintained Catholic Care Social enable Community
with CALD Community proposals for Services delivered a Development
community Development] Community range of Community programs to better
based Development Development address the needs
organisations initiatives in initiatives of CALD residents
for delivery of UrbanGrowth (playgroups, in UrbanGrowth

Community
Development
initiatives in
UrbanGrowth
NSW estates.

NSW estates.

environmental
education etc) in
UrbanGrowth NSW
Minto and Bunya
projects.

NSW communities.
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CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Workforce diversity performance  Planned outcomes for FY15/16
The following initiatives are planned for FY15/16:

* A Leadership Development Program will be rolled out in
the second half of 2015 for senior staff and will include
360 degree assessment, personal leadership coaching,

Workforce diversity
In FY14/15, we undertook the following initiatives:

 We provided access for all employees to leadership, leadership framework workshop, performance feedback and
management and professional development programs coaching workshop.
including workshops, networking opportunities, mentoring * A training program to support our cultural development
and coaching. including leading values (for senior leaders) and living values
* Held regular ‘Lunch with the CEQ’ events that allowed staff (for all staff).
to raise and discuss any issues with the Chief Executive ¢ Ongoing learning and development workshops will be held
Officer in an informal and open environment. including effective communication, great presentations,
* We provided all new employees with a formal induction overcoming conflict, the power of influence and the
covering our workplace practices and policies on WHS, principled negotiator.
fair treatment at work, a bullying and harassment- * Continuous monitoring of the professional development
free workplace, grievance procedures and flexible plans will take place as part of our performance
work arrangements. development review process.
* The monthly Human Resources Board Report provides * Ongoing coaching and mentoring will be offered through
information relating to gender diversity including our learning and development program, which provides a
remuneration and headcount statistics. structure for employee growth.

Parliamentary Annual Report tables

Trends in the representation of workforce diversity groups

Workforce diversity group Benchmark/target 2013 2014 2015
Women 50% 45.8% 47.1% 47.3%
Aboriginal people and 2.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Torres Strait Islanders

People whose first language 19.0% 22.9% 21.3% 17.9%
spoken as a child was not

English

People with a disability N/A 2.1% 3.4% 2.9%
People with a disability 1.5% 0.0% 0.6% 0.5%
requiring work-related

adjustment

Parliamentary Annual Report tables

Trends in the distribution of workforce diversity groups

Workforce diversity group Benchmark/target 2013 2014 2015
Women 100 86 84 88
Aboriginal people and 100 N/A N/A N/A
Torres Strait Islanders

People whose first language 100 92 93 94
spoken as a child was not

English

People with a disability 100 N/A N/A N/A
People with a disability 100 N/A N/A N/A
requiring work-related

adjustment

Note 1: A Distribution Index of 100 indicates that the centre of the distribution of the workforce diversity group across salary levels is equivalent to that of other
staff. Values less than 100 mean that the workforce diversity group tends to be more concentrated at lower salary levels than is the case for other staff. The more
pronounced this tendency is, the lower the index will be. In some cases the index may be more than 100, indicating that the workforce diversity group is less
concentrated at lower salary levels.

Note 2: The Distribution Index is not calculated where workforce diversity group or non-workforce diversity group numbers are less than 20.
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CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Addressing discrimination in the workforce

We have adopted the following measures to minimise the
incidence of discrimination in the workplace:

* We provide an induction website to new staff which covers
employment conditions, workplace practices, and our
policies on fair treatment, grievance procedures, and anti-
harassment and bullying in the workplace.

* We provide manager training in leadership skills,

including performance development and effective
communication skills.

We regularly review policies and procedures
to ensure they provide clear guidelines for a
discrimination-free environment.

NSW Government Action Plan for Women

We have met the objectives of NSW Government’s Action Plan
for Women by:

* providing extensive professional development opportunities
through training programs, mentoring and coaching, and
internal/external networking events

ensuring flexible working arrangements including job share,
working from home and inter-office work locations, and part
time employment

promoting achievements via the performance management
process, reward and recognition program and
internal communications.

Our guarantee of service

Code of Conduct

We place importance on integrity, probity and the promotion
of a positive and responsive attitude. Our Code of Conduct
provides a foundation that guides staff on matters such as
honesty and integrity, conflict of interest, inside information,
and corporate citizenship. The code applies to all staff, the
Board of Directors, and to contractors, consultants, and
agency staff.

All groups are responsible for the maintenance of high ethical
standards to preserve the reputation for ethical and principled
behaviour. The code is applied in conjunction with the legal and
regulatory requirements applicable to UrbanGrowth NSW as
well as Australia’s social values, laws, and customs.

New employees are required to sign an acknowledgement form
which accompanies the code to confirm that they understand
our ethics standards. Existing employees are also asked to
reaffirm their understanding of the code as required.

Implementing our values

We are continuing to build a culture of excellence.

Over the last 12 months we implemented four key values:
Visionary

Courageous

Collaborative

Accountable

These values guide our decision making and how we interact
with internal and external stakeholders. To further support the
integration of our values into the workplace, we implemented
a new performance management cycle which connects key
performance indicators (KPIs) and personal development plans
(PDPs) with our values.

Complaints and feedback system

We welcome feedback from all stakeholders and have policies
and procedures in place to guide staff on their responsibilities
if a compliment or if a complaint is made relative to our
products, services and conduct. We also provide advice to our
customers and stakeholders on how to submit feedback, and
the procedures we follow if they choose to submit one. Senior
management reviews complaints to determine if there is cause
to implement corrective or preventative action. The majority of
complaints are dealt with within seven days.

This year, there was an increase in the number of complaints
received compared to the previous reporting period (31
complaints compared to 17 in FY13/14, see table below).
We received complaints about our construction, marketing
and sales activities.

During FY14/15, we also received five formal compliments
relating to customer service, professionalism and our
willingness to participate in professional events.

Complaints register

Category of Complaint ~ 2014-2015 2013-2014 Number
Number of of complaints
complaints

Design 6 2

Environment 5 2

Marketing/Sales 12 7

Miscellaneous 8 6 ( 1 constructions

and 5 other)

Total 31 17

Procedures for shareholder and employee
consultation and feedback

We have procedures for our portfolio and shareholder ministers
to provide recommendations, feedback or direction to the
Board and senior management. The Portfolio Minister provides
a statement of priorities for the Board each year and the Board
considers this in the preparation of the corporate plan.
Members of senior management meet with the Portfolio
Minister regularly to discuss progress against corporate
objectives and shareholder ministers are also invited to
discuss corporate performance.

All division heads and general managers hold regular meetings
to discuss issues with their staff. Significant issues are
reported to the Chief Executive Officer monthly by each
Division Head or General Manager. Any matters arising that
require the Board’s attention are reported by the Chief
Executive Officer in his regular update, which is a standing
agenda item for every scheduled Board meeting.
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CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Executive positions

Total remuneration for senior executives is calculated as the
sum of the cost of employment, including contributions to a
superannuation scheme by UrbanGrowth NSW and novated
lease payments for a motor vehicle, where such an option has
been exercised. The Chief Executive Officer’'s performance is
reviewed on a half yearly basis by the Chairman, who reports
the outcome of his review to the Remuneration Committee. The
Chief Executive Officer reviews the performance of each of the
Division Heads on a half yearly basis, and the findings from the
annual review are reported to the Remuneration Committee.

2015 2014

Female Male Female Male
Band 4 (Secretary) 0 1 0 1
Band 3 (Deputy 2 5 1 5
Secretary)
Band 2 (Executive 2 1 3 0
Director)
Band 1 (Director) 0 0
Totals 4 7 4 6
Combined total 11 10

Average
Band Range Remuneration
$ 2015 2014

Band 4 (Secretary) 441,201 — 509,750 533,000 520,000
Band 3 Deputy 513050 441,200 380,000 358,333
Secretary)
Band 2 (Bxecutive 10 851 313,050 297,250 290,000
Director)
Band 1 (Director) 174,500 — 248,850 0 0

11.52% of UrbanGrowth NSW employee related expenditure in 2015 was
related to senior executives, compared with 12.45% in 2014.

Miscellaneous activities

Promotion

During the reporting period our promotion activities increased
awareness and encouraged public participation and comment
that would contribute to our projects. Promotion was also
undertaken to support the sale of land.

Promotion includes:

* maintaining, creating and enhancing websites

 advertising including print, online, outdoor and radio

* stationery

e fact sheets, information booklets, and other print collateral.

Information concerning our corporate activities was
communicated to stakeholders through the Annual Report
FY13/14 on our website: www.urbangrowthnsw.com.au

Funds granted to non-government
community organisations

During the year UrbanGrowth NSW donated $50,000 to

Renew Newcastle, a not for profit city revitalisation organisation
established to find short and medium term uses for buildings in
Newcastle’s CBD that are currently vacant, disused, or awaiting
redevelopment. The donation assisted with meeting the
company’s ongoing cost of operations. For more information

on the partners and operations of Renew Newcastle, please
visit www.renewnewcastle.org

Production cost of Annual Report

The Annual Report FY14/15 was produced in-house to
minimise costs. The total cost of production, including
photography and printing, is estimated at approximately
$5,000.

Consultancies

We spent approximately $720,000 during the reporting
period on consultants. These engagements were for
strategic planning.

Overseas visits

One staff member underook overseas travel during the
reporting period at an approximate cost of $20,000. This
related to a Program Director participating in the Future Cities
Program in the United States. The trip was approved in
accordance with the UrbanGrowth NSW Travel Policy and
supported by government stakeholders.
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CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Disclosure of approved exemptions

Following corporatisation on 1 January 2002, approval was granted for reporting exemptions relevant to this Annual
Report (shown in the table below). The exemptions, some with conditions attached, were approved by NSW
Treasury to overcome concerns about the loss of commercial confidentiality for statutory state-owned corporations.

Statutory Requirements

Annual reporting exemptions

Act/Regulation references Comments

Budgets:

¢ Detailed budget for the year in review

* Outline budget for next year

* Particulars of material adjustments to detailed budget
for the year in review.

s.7(1) (a) (iii)

Annual Reports

(Statutory Bodies) Act 1984
cl. 7 Annual Reports (Statutory
Bodies) Regulation 2015

Report of operations

Summary review of operations:

* Narrative summary of significant operations

* Selected financial and other quantitative information associated
with the administration of programs or operations.

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

Exemption subject to a condition
that comments and information
relating to the “summary review
of operations” are to be disclosed
in a summarised form.

Management and activities:
* Nature and range of activities
* Measures and indicators of performance
e Internal and external performance reviews
* Benefits from management and strategy reviews
* Management improvement plans and achievements
* Major problems and issues
* Major works in progress, cost to date, estimated dates of
completion and cost overruns
* Reasons for significant delays etc to major works or programs
* Research and development:
— completed research including resources allocated
— continuing research and development activities,
including resources
— allocated unless that information could adversely
affect operations.

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

Exemption subject to a condition
that comments and information
relating to “management and
activities” are to be disclosed

in @ summarised form.

Human resources:

* Number of employees by category and comparison
to prior three years

* Exceptional movements in employee wages,
salaries or allowances

* Personnel policies and practices

¢ Industrial relations policies and practices.

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

Schedule 1 Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies) Regulation 2010

Consultants:
* For each engagement costing more than $50,000:
— name of consultant
— title of project
— actual cost.
* For each engagement costing less than $50,000:
— total number of engagements
— total cost.
« If applicable, a statement that no consultants were engaged.

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

Exemption subject to a condition
that the total amount spent on
consultants is to be disclosed
along with a summary of the main
purposes of the engagements.
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CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Statutory Requirements

Annual reporting exemptions

Act/Regulation references

Comments

Land disposal:
* Properties disposed of during the year:
— total number
— total value
« If value greater than $5 million and not by public
auction or tender:
— list of properties
— for each case, name of person who acquired the property
and proceeds from disposal.

* Details of family or business connections between the purchaser

and the person responsible for approving the disposal
* Statement giving reasons for the disposal
* Purpose/s for which proceeds were used
» Statement indicating that access to the documents relating to

the disposal can be obtained under the Government Information

(Public Access) Act 2009.

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

Consumer responses:

* Extent and main features of complaints

* Services improved/changed in response to
complaints/suggestions.

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

Exemption subject to a condition that
comments and information relating
to “consumer responses” are to be
disclosed in a summarised form.

Payment of accounts:
* Performance in paying accounts, including action to improve
payment performance.

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

This exemption only applies to
statutory state-owned corporations as
they are not subject to the payment
of accounts provisions in s.15 of the
Public Finance and Audit Regulation.

Time for payment of accounts:
* Reasons for late payment
¢ Interest paid due to late payments.

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

As above.

Report on risk management and insurance activities

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

Exemption subject to a condition that
the comments and information are to
be disclosed in a summarised form.

Disclosure of controlled entities:
¢ Details of names, objectives, operations,
activities of controlled entities and measures of performance.

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

Exemption subject to a condition that
the names of the controlled entities
be disclosed along with a summary
of the controlled entities’ objectives,
operations, activities and measures
of performance.

Investment performance

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

Liability management performance

Schedule 1
Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies)
Regulation 2015

UrbanGrowth NSW Annual Report 2015 37



Financial
statements




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Landcom (trading as UrbanGrowth NSW)

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Landcom (the Corporation), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and staterment of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Corporation as at 30 June 2015, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards

. are in accordance with section 41B of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PF&A Act) and
the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010

. comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.2,
My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the PF&A Act and the Sfate Owned Corporations
Act 1989 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In Mote 1.2, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASE 101 ‘Presentation
of Financial Statements’, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on my audit. | conducted
my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that | comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Level 15, 1 Margaret Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GPO Box 12, Sydney NEW 2001 | 102 8275 7101 | 102 8275 7179 | e radlaucl rewgovay | audilnew.gov.au

UrbanGrowth NSW is a trading name of Landcom 39



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including an
assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, a5 well as evaluating the overall presantation of the financial statements.

| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

My opinion does nof provide assurance;

. abaut the future viability of the Corporation
. that it carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
. about the effectiveness of the internal control

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented
. about other information that may have been hyperlinked toffrom the financial statements.

Independence

In conducting my audit, | have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian
Auditing Standards and relevant ethical pronouncements. The PF&A Act further promotes

independence by:
. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies but precluding the provision
of non-audit services, thus ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of New South
Wales are not compromised in their roles by the possibility of losing clients or income.

Aﬁrm

Weini Liao
Director, Financial Audit Services

28 August 2015
SYDNEY

40



LANDCOM TRADING AS URBANGROWTH NSW

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

Pursuant to Section 41C of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, we state that in the opinion of the Directors of Landcom trading as
UrbanGrowth NSW: 5

(a) The financial statements:

(i} exhibit a true and fair view of the financial position of Landcom trading as UrbanGrowth NSW as at 30 June 2015 and of its
performance, as reprasented by the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended on that date;

()  comply with Australian Accounting Standards, AASE Interpretations, the State Owned Corporations Act 1989, the Public
Finance and Audit Act 1983 and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010.

{b) We are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or
inaccurate.

(] At the date of this statemant, there are reasonable grounds 1o believe that the Corporation will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

/)

S i.l?._.r"‘--""-_-..__.-_____‘-

HAREN PENROSE

Director

JOHN BROGDE!
Chairman

[
2% August 2015
Sydney
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Statement of comprehensive income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

2015 2014
Wotes §'000 $'000
Continuing Operations
Sales revenue 2a) | EIlBT}E-ET 536,475
Cast of sales {381899) (412,974)
Gross Profit 2650268 223501
Other revenue 2(t) ‘35877 7.314
Finance income 2Nec) ‘4560 aTio
Marketing expenses 3 (6,730} {7,454)
Employee related expenses 4 [23;504) (20,891)
Other aperating expenses 5 | \ ' (31,860)
Depreciation and amortisation expense & (1.28T) {1111}
Finance costs 7 (4.927) (6,730)
Profit/(toss) on sale of propery, plant and equipment 9_33 279
Profit from continuing operations before income tax equivalent expense %B}\,Bﬁ}g 166,761
]
Income tax equivalent expense B (54,5111 (50,031}
Net profit for the year 127,187 118,730
COther comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Superannuation actuarial gain/(losses) on defined benafit plans 15 i ILB’-I!S} {3.662)
Income tax on ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss . _: 1,098
Total items that will not be rﬂclassi}le:i’fn profit or loss (1,360) (2,584)
Items that may be reciassified subsequently to profit or loss
Income tax on items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss . -
Hﬂl [tems that may be reclassified subsequentiy 10 profit or loss = -
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) {1;‘.3@15} (2.564)
Total comprehensive income for the year 126,827 114,166

The above Statermeant of comprehensive income 5 (o be read In conjunction with the attached notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of financial position

AS AT 30 JUNE 2015
2015 2014

Motes $'000 $'000
Assets
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 9 211 688 092,508
Trade and other receivables 10 16451 12,423
Inventories 11 235,044 308,419
Other cumrent assets 12 5388 4922
Total Current Assets “4T1,571 418,272
Non-Currant Assets
Trade and other receivables 10 7,985 8,434
Inventories 11 374822 401,145
Property, plant and equipment 13 3,553 7465
intangible assets 14 338 161
Deferred tax assets i5 12,045 11529
Other non-current assets 12 - 29
Total Non-Current Assets 398,853 429,763
TOTAL ASSETS 870,424 848,035
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 106780 84 835
Barrowings 20 2?:?15 60681
Current tax llabllites 17 13,359 22.036
Provisions 18 '219_.424_4 162,685
Total Current Liabilities 366,318 330,237
Non-Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 = 5,640
Borrowlngs 20 - 27473
Provisions 18 25,644 57,332
Deferred tax liabilities 21 1732 2,148
Total Mon-Current Liabilities 28,128 92,291
TOTAL LIABILITIES 384,446 422,528
MET ASSETS 475978 425 507
Equity
Contributed capital 22 275,847 275,847
Resarves o a5
Retained eamings 200,131 149,565
TOTAL EQUITY 475978 425,507

The above Statement of fnancial position is to be read in confunction with the attached neles Io the financlal statements.
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Statement of cash flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

2015 2014
Notes $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Recelpts from customers 736,650 585,659
Interast received 3,954 2091
Payments to suppliers and employees (427.796) (411,288)
Income tax equivalent paid {63.49&1 141,446)
Finance costs 16,629) [5,795)
Net cash flows{used in}/ from operating activities 23(b} 242,693 129,221
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and sguipment {513) {999)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment _3;?"9'-'1 1741
 Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities 3,281 742
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of berrowings {59,440) 130,000)
Dividends paid 1o NSW Treasury (57.354) {58,329)
Net cash fiows used In financing activities (126,794)  (88,329)
Met incraasa in cash and cash aguivalents 119.180 41,634
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 52._512@ 50,874
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23(a) 211,688 92,508

The above Statement of cash flows Iz to be read in conjunction with the attached notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Properties

mm;:ff; revaluation i:gmi;: Total equity
reserve
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance as at 1 July 2014 275,847 95 149,565 425,507
Profit for the year - . 127,187 127,187
Other comprehensive income
Superannuation actuanal on defined benefit plans 3 2 J_'i.ﬁd&]' {1,943}
il e : : s83 583
Transfer from reserva on disposal of asset, net.of tax - {95) 95
Tatal other comprehensive income - {95) (1,265] {1.360)
Total comprehensive income for the year - [95) 125822 125,827
Transactions witr.'r;.vu&rs in thelr capacily 85 owners
Dividends to MSW Treasury - - A5 356) t?5.356:|_
Balance as at 30 June 2015 275,847 . 200,131 475,978
Balance as at 1 July 2013 275,847 315 103,945 380,107
Changes in accounting policy {1.412) [1,412)
Restated total equity at 1 July 2013 275,847 315 102533 378,695
Profit for the year s : 116,730 116,730
Other comprahensive INCome
;Lﬂ:;rannuatrun actuarial losses on defined benafil | . lf:’is!ﬂ.'l (3.662)
o o o ot - L dew aom
Transfer from reserve on disposal of asset, net of 1ax - {220) 220
Total other comprehensive Income - (220) (2:344) {2.564)
Total comprahensive income for the year - (220 1_1.4;335"5 114,166
Transactions with owness in thelr capacity as owners
Dividends to NSW Treasury - _15?.35;4} (67.354)
Balance as at 30 June 2014 275,847 95 149,565 425,507

The above Statement of changes in equity is to be reéad in conjunciion with the attached notes. to the financlal statements,
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Notes to and forming part
of the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

REPORTING ENTITY
Landoom trading as UrbanGrowth NSW is a NSW statutory State Owned Corporation astablished on 1 January 2002 by the Landcom
Corporation Act 2001 (the Act).
Thi financial statements for the yvear endad 30 lune 2015 have been authorised for issue by the Board on 28 August 2015,

UrbanGrowth RSW undertakes to plan and deliver major urban transformation programs that will underpin the future prospenty of NSW,
UrbanGrowih NSW coliaborates with government, private, and community stakehalders to create a united vision for a program, bulld a sirong
sense of place and enable its delivery, UrbanGrowth NSW maximises the value of government land for the public good. improve the amenity
and liveability of urban spaces, and enable the delivery of housing and jobs growth,

UrbanGrowth NSW also provides management services to other government agencies.

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Basis of Preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:

+  the State Owned Corporations Act 1985,

* applicable Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations): and

* the requirements of the Puldic Finance and Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit Regutation 2010,

Praperty, plant and sgquipment and Investment property are measured at fair value. Other financial statements items are prepared in
accardance with the histoncal cost convention. Borrowings are stated st amortised cost and provisions are stated al present value,

Judgements, key assumptions and estimations that management has mede are disclosed in the refevant notes to the financial statemeants.
All amounts are rounded o the nearest one thousand dodfars and expressed in Awstralian currency.

1.2 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements and nates comply with International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS) as issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board (IASE).

The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless stated otherwise.

13 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measurad at the fair value of the considaration or contnbution received or receivable.

I SBales revenue comprises income from sale of land cwned by UrbanGrowth NSW, income from management of the sale of land not owned
by UrbanGrowth NSW, and income from others. Sales revenue i3 recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
land have passed to the buyer on settlement and can be reliably measured.

Interest income is recognised as tha interest accries.

I Management fees are based on the general principle that there is a right 10 be compensated for services renderad and it is probable that
economic benefits will result and the income can be refiably measured.

Rental income 15 recognised in accordance with AASE 117 Leases on a stralight-ling basis over the term of the leass.

Other income is based on the general principte thatl there 1S 8 right 1o be compensated for services rendercd and it is probable that
economic benefits will result and the revenue can be reliably measured,

14 Expenditure Recognition

Cperating and working expensss are expensed In theyear in which thay are incurred, Where they are directly altributable to the management
of construction contracts, a propartion is capitalised to land under deveiopment (works m progress) (refer to Note 1.8).

1.5 Employee Benefits

Al labilities for emploves benefits are fully provided for In accordance with AASE 119 Employee Benefits (refer to Note 18), Employes
benefits appiicable to UrbanGraowth NSW are shown below,

Salarles and annual leave

Liabilities for salanes and annual leave {including non-monetary benefits) that-are due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the emplayes renders the service are recognised and measured in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date at
undiscouried nominal amounts based on the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settied.
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1.5 Employee Benefits (continued)

Non-vesting sick leave

Unused non-vesting sick leave does not give rise to a llability, as it is not consldered probable that sick leave taken in the fulure will be greater
than the benafits accrued in any reparting perod.

Long service leave

Long servige leave |s measured on & nominal value basis and compared 10 present value calculated in accordance with AASE 119 Employeae
Benefits for all employees with 5 or more years of service in the public sector every three years, The provision is calculated using estimated
future increases insalary rates including related oncosts. This is in accordance with TC15/09 Accounting for Long Service Leave and Annual
Leave.

Superannuation

Pillar Administration advises UrbanGrowth NSW of the level of lability for UrbanGrowth NSW's superannuation commitments to its employees
who are members of the vanous divisions of the scheme. The calculation of the superannuation position 15 based on actuarial reviews
indepandent of UrbanGrowth NSW's ongeing activities and involvemeant. The main drivers of the actuarial calculations are the tevel of
investment return, salary inflation and CPIincreases.

UrbanGrowth NSW has an abligation for the defined bengfit contribution which becomes payatle on and after rétirement of staff, Contribution
is made to the State Superannuation Scheme (S55), the State Authorities Superan nuatien Schemea (SASS) and the State Authorities Non
Contributorny Superannuation Schemae (SANCS).

The 545 Trustee Corporation through the fund’'s actuary has determined that unfunded superannuation contributions as at 30 June 2015 for
the SASS, SANCS and 555 was estimated at $21.327 million (2014; $§18,658 million).

Amounts representing prepaid superannuation centributions are recognised as an asset. Amounts representing unfunded superannuation
aré recognised as a liability, Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediataly as other comprehensive incomae/ oulside profit or lossin
the yvear in which they occur,

Termination payments

Termination benefits are payable when employment 15 terminatad before the normal retirement date, or when an employes accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benafits.

Terminafion benefits are recognised at the earlier of the following dates:
(&) when UrbanGrowth NSW can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

(b} whien UrbanGrowth NSW recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of AASE 137 and involves the payment of
terminations benefits.

In the case of an offer made 1o encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured basad on the number of employess
expacied 1o accepl the offer. Benefits faliing due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discountad 10 present value
lkability.

Payroll on-costs

The outstanding amounts of payroll tax, workers' compensation, insurance premiums and fringe benefits tax, which are conseguential to
employment. are recognised as iabilities and expenses where the employes benefits to which they relate to have been recognisad.

1.6 Insurance

UrbanGrowth MSW carries a comprehensive range of insurances covering proparty, public llability, motor vehicles and gther contingencies
through the NSW Treasury Managed Fund of self-insurance for Government agencies. The expensa {premium) is determined by the Fund
Manager based on past claim experience. These insurance policies are reviewed annually to ensure thal they are adequale and were current
al 30 June 2015, No major claims exist under these policies at 30 June 2015,

17 Leases

Operaling leass payments, whire the lessor effectively retains substiantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of leased items, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-ling basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time patterm in which econamic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The cost of improvement 1o or on leasehold property is capitalised and disclosed as leasehold improvements, and amortised over the
unexpired period of the lease term or the estimated usaful lives of the improvements, whichever is the sharter,
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1.7 Leases (continued)

Lease incantives under a non-cancellable operating lease, like a rentfree period, Is recopnised as an asset as a lessor(leasehold right) and as
 liability as & lessae(leass incentive) at the inception of the lease in an amount equal 1o the present valug of the minimum lease payments.
Leasehold nght (asset) is amortised to rental expense on a stralght-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentive (Hability] is reduced
by allocating lease rental payments between rental expenses and reduction of the liability at the beginning of the leass paymient period unti|
the end of the lease term.

UrbanGrowth NSW has operaling leases in place in respect of Its head aoffice pramises in Sydney CBD, Parramatta, regional office in
Mewcastle, Tuncurry and sales offices at various locations within New South Wailes. There are no contingent rentals pavable in respect of
these leases and the terms of renewal are between 1 and 4 years after lease terms expire.

1.8 Capitalisation of Expenses - Development Costs and Cost of Sales

UrbanGrowth NSW charges all direct expenditure on development works to relevant projects. All operating expenditure is initially charged to
and disclosed in the Statement of comprehensive income when it is incurred, Some salary charges and rétated expenses are subsequently
capitalised 1o projects together with ¢ther administrative overheads. Employee expenses incurred in respect of devalopment and sales
activities are capitalised 1o inventony when incurred {refer 1o notes 4 and 11).

1.9 Income Tax Equivalent Expense

UrbanGrowth NSW is subject to naotional taxation In accordance with the State Owned Corporation Act 1989, From 1 July 2003, taxation
liakility has been assessed according to the Notional Tax Equivalent Regime of the NSW Treasury, which proposes, as far as practical, the
adoption of the Commanwealth Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (as amended) as the basis for determining taxation fability, Tax effect
accounting has also bean adopted from 1 July 2003,

Current tax

Currant tax s calculated by reference 1o the amount of income taxes payable or recoverabie in respect of the taxabie profit or tax loss for the
year, It i5 calculated using lax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. Current t1ax for current
and prior years is recognised as a lability {or asset) to the axtent that it i unpaid (or refundable),

Deferred tax

Defarred tax is accounted for using the Statement of financial position liability method. Temporary differences are differences betwaen the tax
base of an asset or lability and its carrying amount in the Statement of financial position, The tax base of an asset or liability is the amount
attributed to that asset or liability for tax purposes,

In pringiple, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all teable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it
= probabig that sufficient taxable amounts will be avallable against which deductible temporary differénces or unused tax losses and 1ax
offsets can be utilised. However, deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise 1o them arise
from the initial recognition of assets and liahilities (other than as a result of a business combination) which affects neither taxable income nor
accounting prafit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply o the years) when the asset and liability giving
rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) thet have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date,

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would foliow from the manner in which the
company expects. at the reporting date. 1o recover or setlle the carrying amaount of its assets and labilties,

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are offset when they refate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the company imtends
to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a net basis,

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense o incoma in the Statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tas 13 also recognised directly in eguity.

1.10 Dividends to the NSW Treasury

UrbanGrowth NSW i5 required to pay dividends to the Consalidated Fund of NSW Treasury in accordance with the State Owned Corporations
Act 1989 and as agraed in the Statement of Corporate Intent. For ihe year ended 30 June 2015, dividends are calculated in accordance with
TPP 14-04 Financial Distribution Policy for Government Busingsses,
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111 Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST) exdcept:

where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO), It is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of an asset or as pant of an item of expense,;

for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST,
The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the ATQ is included as part of receivables or payvabies.

Cash fows are included In the Statement of cash flows on 8 gross basis. The GST componentsaf cash flaws arising from Investing and
financing activities that are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating gash tlows.

1.12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits, Cash equivalents are short-term, highly lguid investments that are readily convertinle to
Knewn amounts of cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

1.13 Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Thesa financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. Subsequent measurement is
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for any impairment of receivables. Any changes are accounted for in
the Statement of comprehensive income when Impaired, derecognised, or through the amortisation process.

Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at transaction ¢ost or face value.

[mterest is charged on overdue settlement monies where agreed settlement dates are not met. The rate of inteérest applied varied during the
year and is currently 11.13% (2014: 11,38%), Sales are made on varying terms, but generally on & 30-day exchange and 30-day settiement
basis.

1.14 Inventories - Land Classification

Inventories compise undeveloped land, work in progress and developed land. Undeveloped tand with medium to longterm development
potential is classified as a non-current asset. Land Is classified as work In progress while itis under development, thatis, from the time
contracts are signed for work to proceed.

Developed land is land which has been subdivided and registered on completion of all developmant activity. Developed land and wark in
progress that are expected to be sold within the nest 12 months are classified as currant and the balance is classified as non-current, As the
process of development progresses, land projects are reciassified from undeveloped land to workl in progress, then, on completion, to
developed fand for sale,

UrbanGrowth NSW reviews its inventory balances perlodically and writes off inventory where the net realisatile valug is less than the carrying
amaunt in the accounts. UrbanGrowth NSW capitalises costs associated with pursuing development opporiunities. Where there isa
likelihood that the praject will not progress then previousiy capitalised costs are written off and recognised as an expensa in the Staterment of
compranensiva Income.

1.15 Inventories - Land Valuation

Al tand is valued at the jawer of cost o net realisable value, Cost includes acquisition, development and capitalised overhaad. Net realisable
valug 15 the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

1.16 Land, Buildings (Sales Offices) and Leasehold Improvements

Land and buildings {sales offices) are initially recorded at their cast of acquisition. They are revalued every 3 years in accordance with
Treasury guidelines {see Note 1.22). The last revaluation was performed in April 2013 by an external qualified valuer. These values were
based on land and bullding sales in the areas in which the properties are located.

Sales office bulldings are depreciated on a straight line basis over 14 years.
Land s not-a depreciable asset,
All 1and and bulldings were disposed of duning the 2015 financial year.

Leasehold improvements are valued at cost and amoriised on a straight line basis gver the unexpired period of the lease term or the assets
useful life, whichever i< shorter.
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1.17 Plant and Equipment

Flant and equipment are recorded at the cost of acquisition, plus major renavation or improvement costs, If any, and are shown at cost less

accumuiated depraciation and impairment. Depreciation on all plant and equipment is calculated on the basis of the useful life of the asset
to UrbanGrowth NSW using the straight line method. The written down value of plant and equipment as at 30 June 2015 approximates fair

valie, Plant and equipment costing $500 and above individually are capitalised.

The following estimated useful lives are used in the caloulation of depreciation for major items:

Computer eguipment -3to 4 years
Office equipment =510 20 years
Mator Vehicles -8 years,

impairment: The carrying values of plant and equipment are revigwed Tor impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrylng value may not he recoverable,

1.18 Trade and Other Payables

All trade payables are recognisad for amounts due 1o be paid in the fulure for goods or Services recelved, whether or not invoiced. Payables
are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on transactional cost or face value. Subsequent measurement s al amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, Shortterm payables are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect of discounting s
immaterial.

Amounts owing to suppliers are settled in accordance with the policy set out in the Treasurer's Directions. If trade terms are not specified,
payment is made ne later than the end of the month following the month in which an invoice or statement is received. The Treasurer's
Directions allow the Minister to award interest for late payment.

UrbanGrowtt MSW alse Nolds monies in rust paid by prospective Duyars of land, as either halding depesils or on exchiange of contracts
pending settiement.

Unearned income is reported a8 a current liability - trade and other ﬁa}'atrles in the statemeant of financial position. The balance relates to
advances received from project pariners. UrbanGrowth NSW is entitled 1o recognise revenue when the obligations under the project
agreaments are fulfilled.

1.19 Borrowings

All borrowings are recorded at face value net of any premium or discounts. Loans are not held for trading and are recognised at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Premiums and discounts are amortised over the life of the borrowings and charged to the Statement
of comprehensive income. Borrowing costs are recognised 85 an expense whan incurred. Gains and losses are recognisad in the Statement
of comprehensive Income when the liabilities are derscognised as well as through the amartisation process,

1.20 Derivatives

NSW Treasury Corporation (TCorp) has been contracted (o manage UrbanGrowth NSW's debit portfolio. This type of derivative financiat
Instrument is recognised in the financial statements an inception at fair value and is subsequantly remeasured 12 fair value at each reporting
date. The nat amount receivable/payable is recognised in the Statement of financial position and any gains/losses incurred are racognised in
the Statement of comprehensive Income,

1.21 Financial Instruments

Financial instruments give rise to positions that are a financial asset of either UrbanGrowth NSW or its counterparts and a financial liability (or
equity instrument) of the other party. For UrbanGrowth NSW, these Include cash assets, receivables, payables and borowings,

Information is disclosed in Note 24, Inrespect of the credit risk and Interest rate risk of financial instruments,  All such amounts are carried at
nel fair value unless otherwise stated.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’, and “loans and
récelvables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initiad recognition,

Effactlve Interest method

The effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating int@rest ncome over e
relevant penod. The effactive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
recaived that form an integral part of the effective inlerest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or distounts) through the expectad life
of thi financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorder period, to the net camying amount of the financial asset,

Income is recognised on an effective interest rate basls for debt instruments other than those financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or
loss’
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1.21 Financial Instruments {continued)

Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss where the financial assel:
+  has been acquired principally for the purpose of salling in the near future;

« |z apart of an identified-portfalio of financial Instruments that UrbanGrowth NSW manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

+ isadenvative that s not designated and effective as a hedging Instrument,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or lass. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest garned on the financlal asset.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have ficed or determinable payments that are not quated in an active market are
dlassified as ‘lnans and receivables’, Loans and receivables are measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method less
impairment.,

Interest income is recognisad by applying the effective interest rate.

Impairment of financlal assets

Financial assets, other than those at fairvalue through profit or loss, are assessed Tor indicators of impairment at each reporting date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more avents that occurrad after the initiat
racognition of the financial asset the estimated future cash flews of the investment have been impacted.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairmeant s the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
prasent value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of financial assets including uncollectible trade receivables is reduced by the impairmient loss through the use of an
allowance account, Subsequent recoveries af amounts previously written off are credited against the alowance account. Changes in the
carrying amaunt of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

With the exception of available-for-sale equily instruments, if, in a subseguent penod, the amount of the impainment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an evant occurnng after the Impairment was recognised, the previcusly recognised impairment loss is
reversed theough profit of loss 1o the extent the carrying amount of the investimaent at the date the impairment is reversed does not excesad
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

UrbanGrowth NSW derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual fights to the cash flows fram the asset expire, or il transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rawards of ownership of the asset to anather entity. If UrbanGrowth NSW neither transfers
nor retaing substantially all the nsks and rewards of gwnership and conlinues to control the transferred asset. UrbanGrowth NSW recognises
s retained interest in the asset and an associated lisbility for amounts it may have 1o pay. If UrbanGrowth NSW retains substantially all the
riske and rewards of ownership of & transferred financial asset, UrbanGrowih NSW continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing far the proceeds recelved.

Financlal labilitles

Financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. They are subseguently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest mathod, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest method
i & method of calcwlating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of alloeating Intarest expense over the relevant period. The effedtiva
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or. where
appropriate, 8 shorter pericd, to the net camying amount of the financial liability,

Derecognition of financial Habllitles
UrbanGrowth NSW derecognises a financial liabiity only when the obligation under the liability Is discharged, cancelled or éxpired,
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1.22 Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Physical non-current assets are valued in accordance with the “Valuation of Physical Non-Current Assets at Fair Value® Policy and Guidelines
Paper (TPP 14-01), This policy adopts fair value In accordance with AASE 116 Property, Flant and Equipment and 4458 140 nvestment
Property and AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Property, plant and equipment is measured on an existing use basis, where there are no feasible allernative uses in the existing natural, legal,
financial and socio-political environment. However, in the limited clreumstances where there are feasible altemative uses. assets are valued
at their highest and best use.

Fair value of property, plant and equipment is determined based on the best avallable market evidence, including current market selling
prices for the same or similar assets. Where there is no available market evidence, the asset’s fair value s measured at ts market buying
price, the indicator of which is depreciated replacement cosl

When revaluing non-current assets by reference to current prices for assets newer than those being revalued (adjusted 1o reflact the prasent
comditicn of the assets), the gross amount and the related accumulated depreciation are separately restated.

For other assets, any balances of accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date in respect of those assets are credited fo the asset
accounts to which they relate, The net asset accounts are then increased or decreased by the revaluation increments or decrements.

Ravaluation increments are cradited directiy to the revaluation surplius, except that, to the extent thatl an increment reverses a revaluation
decrement in respect of the same asset previously recognised as an expense in the Statement of comprehensive income, the increment is
recognised immediately as revenue inthe Statement of comprehensive income.

Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in the Statement of comprehensive income, except that, to the extent that a
credil balance exists in the revaluation surplus in respedt of the same assal, they are debited directly to the revalustion surplus.

Revaluation increments and decremenis are offset against each individual asset and rot within @ class of assels,

Where an asset that has previously been revalued is disposed of, any balance remaining in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset |s
transferred to retained eamings.

UrbanGrowth NSW uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficlent data are available to measure
Tair value, maximising the use of refevant cbeernvable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable Inputs.

All assets-and Habilives for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categonsed within the fair value
hierarchy, described as fallows, baged on the lowest level Input that |s significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole:

Level 1= Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idemical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at measuremant
dats.

Level 2 — Inputs are’ inputs other than quoted prices included within.Level 1 that are abservable for the assel or liahility, either directly or
indirectly,

Level 2 = |nputs-are unobservable inputs Tor the asset or lability.

For assets and labilives that are recognised in the financial statements oh 3 recurting basis. UrbanGrowih NSW determines whether transfers
have occurred between Levels in the hisrarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the falr
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting periad.

1.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when UrsbanGrowth NSW has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that UrbanGrowth NSW will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as & provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 1o setile the presant obligation et reporting date,
lakil'tg Imte account the risks and uncerainiies surmounding the abligation. Where a provision s measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation. its carrying amount is the present value of those cash Tlows.

The provision to complete projects captures all unpaid development costs which were Included in the original land development schedule, itis
raiged as an estimate based on known costs at the time when fhe land is ready for saies release, The provision alsa includes the value of
warks completed at 30 June 2015 of any performance bullding contracts enterad inta by UrbanGrowih NSW.

Prowvisions for future rectification waorks relate to any matter autstanding on UrbanGrowth NSW projects which have for all intents and
purposes been completed. All future costs that may result in connection with these completed projects are recognised as provisions,

Provision for rebates s recognised when a ot s sold. As part of the conditions of sale, UrbanGrowth NSW may be committed 1o make a
payment to the purchaser provided cerlain design criterla are met and applied for within a specified period by the purcheser, usually betwesn
12-24 months, This payment represents reimbursement for additional costs incurred by the purchaser in complying with the design criteria
set by UrbanGrowth NSW. I the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted at the pre-tax rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the ime value of money and the risks specific 1o the liability,
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1.24 Intangible Assets

Computer software costs (licences) and website costs are treatad as intangible assets. The wseful lives of these infangibie assels were
estimated as finite and the cost method was utilised for their measurement. Intangible assets are subsequently measured at fair value only if
there is an active market. As there is no active market for UrbanGrowth NSW's intangible assets, the assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation. Intangible assets are tested for imgairment where an indicator of impairment exists. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of amortisation for intangible assels:
Computer software - 4 yaars
Website costs - Hyears

1.25 Recoverable Amount of Assets

At each reporting date, UrbanGrowth NSW assesses whether there 1s any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an indicator of
impairmant exists, UrbanGrowth NSW makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where the canying amount of an assat exceads its
recoverable amount. the assel 15 considered impaired and is written down o its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount Is the greater of
fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use.

1.26 Other Current Assets

Othar current assets répresent prepayment of expenditure which is recognised on a cost basis. These amounts are recogmsed i The
Statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis except where anothar systematic basis s more reprasentative of the time pattern
Inwhich economic benefits from the preépayments are consumed.

1.27 Joint Arrangements

Under AASE 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint venlures. The
classification depends on the contractual nghts and obligations of each Investoar, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.
UGNSW has jeint operations.

Joint operations

UGHSW recognises its direct right to the assets, labilibes, revenues and expenses of [aint cperations and |ts share of any [ointly held or
Incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and expanses, Thess have been mcorporated in the financial statements under the appropriate headings.
Dietails of the joint operation are sel out in note 28,
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.28 Changes in accounting policy, including new or revised Australian Accounting Standards

(i} Effective Accounting Standards/Interpretations issued but not yet effective

At the date of autheorisation of the financial statements; the Standards and Interpretations listed below were in Issue bul not vet effective.

Initial application of the following Standards/Interpretations iz not expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of

UrbanGrowih NSW.

Australian Accounting Standards 2012-2014 Cyile

Standard/Interpratation Effective for annual Expacted to be
raparting periods initially applied in
beginning on or after the financial year

ending

AASE 2013-9 Amendments to Austraitan Accounting Standards - Conceplual Framewark,

Matenality and Financial Instruments{Part C - Financial Instruments) it APIREI0IR

AASE 2014-1 (Part E) and AASE 2014-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 1 January 2015 30 Junie 2016

regarding financial instruments

AASE 2015-3 Amandments 1o Ausiralian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal

of AASE 1031 Materiality 1 January 2015 30 June 2016

AASE 14 and AASE 2014-1Part D) regarding Regulatory Defarral Accounts 1 January 2016 30 June 2017

AASE 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements to 1 January 2016 30 Jurie 2017

AASE 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure nitiative:
Amendments to AASE 101

1 January 2016

30 June 2017

AASE 2014-4 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amaortisation 1 January 2016 30 June 2018
AASE 2014-3 Amendments 1o Australian Accounting Standards - Accounting for

Acguisitions of Interests in Joint Operations e *0June:2014
AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and 2014-5 Armendments to Australian

Acoounting Standards arising fram AASE 15 1 ianyany 2017 SMne 2047
AN Financal instruments 24 July 2014 30 June 2018
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2015 2014
$°000 $'000
2(a) Sales Revenue
income from land sales 40].,.3?9 481,339
Inceme from managed land sales ‘245,088 155,136
646,967 636,475
2(b) Other Revenue
Management fees 21 624 1.8910
Rental Income 1,336 1,495
Holding cost recoveries 2:566 3450
Other 351 459
25877 7.314
2(c) Finance Income
Interast from bank 3,556 1,895
Unwinding of the discount rate 607 1619
Interest from late settilament J97 196
o 4,560 3,710
3 Marketing Expenses
Advertising 4,934 BETT
Sales contractors and commission 1423 1272
Dther 374, 502
6,730 7451
4 Employee Related Expenses
Salaries and wages 27,893 20,510
Termination paymenis &05 ars
Superannuation - defined benefit plang* 1,2411} 1.076
Superannuation - defined contribution Mans 2,480 1723
LONg service leave i.EE-CI- 767
Annual leave 2,428 1,732
Workers' compensation insurance 22 81
Payroll tax and fringe benefits tax 2017 1,605
Other emploves related expenses F.511: a944
39,840 29,413
Transfer of capltal costs to inventornes [_!.E,E_‘lf:.’\‘_.if-} {8522
23,504 20,891
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4 Employee Related Expenses (continued)

* Refer Note 19. Superannuation actuarial gain / (loss) of (51.943.000 loss) (2014 (53,662,000 loss)) are recognised as other
comprengnsive ingome.
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
S Other Operating Expenses
Auditor's remuneration - audit of financial statements 210 190
Operating lease rental expense - minimum lease paymenis 2559 1967
Maintenance 380 454
Insurance 1I}EII 107
General administrative costs 15820 9,588
Council rates 4317 1574
Land tax 8,128 8,588
Adjustment of inventory to net realisable value 13.553 4,782
Expensas incurred on project management. 15‘245 294
Project establishment costs 21172 4.211
Property and accommodation expenses L:!EE 1414
Reversa! of debtor's impairment 1628) 3
Consultancy feas 720 248
81713 34,117
Transfer of capital costs 1o inventories {3;215} {2.25T)
78,423 31,860
6 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Buildings 95 123
Leasahold improvements 419 420
Plant and equipnient 1633 453
Imtangible assels 114 78
Motar vehicles 26 27
1287 1111
7 Finance Costs
Interest 2,984 5370
Unwinding of the discount rate .'I.-.ﬁilﬁ
Amortisation of loan {discount)/premium (B89 {584
Government guarantes fee 1032 2,044
4,927 6,730

56



Notes to and forming part
of the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
8 Income Tax
Income tax expensa recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014 are:
Current income tax charge 54,858 50,088
Deferred income tak '
Qrigination and reversal of temporary differences {3_4:'?! (57}
Income tax expensa reported in the Statement of comprehensive income 54.511 50,031
Deferred incomae tax (revenuel/expense included in income 1ax expense comprises:
Decrease/{increase) in deferred 1ax assels &7 (131)
{Decrease)/increase in deferrad (ax liabilities {414) 74
(347) (57)
Income tax expense recognised directly in equity
Deferred income Lax related Lo items charged or credited directly to equity:
Superannuation actuarial gain/{ loss) _[533}' {1,008)
Income tax expense reported in equity (583) (1,058)

A reconciliation between lax expense applicable to accounting profit before income tax at the stalutory income lax rate 1o income tax
expense at the entity’s effective income tax rate:

Accounting prafit befare income tax 181,698 166,761
At the statutory Income tax rate of 30% (2014: 30%) 54 5049 50.028
Deductions not allowable for income tax purposes 2 3
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of comprehensive income 54 511 50,031

9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 72,688 92,508
Short term deposits 139,000 -
211,688 92,508

Included in the cash and cash equivalents is restricted cash of $12.294 million (2014 $10.454 million). These funds are held as security
deposits for various projects.

UrbanGrowth NSW is a trading name of Landcom 57



Notes to and forming part
of the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

2015 2014
$'000 $'000
10 Trade and Other Receivables
Current
Trade receivables 15,539 12,035
Allowance for impairment loss - {628)
Development bonds 254 743
Other receivables B58 273
N 16,451 12,423
Non-current
Trade receivables BT 84388
Development bonds b 20
Loan receivables BRE 926
B 7,095 9,434
Movement in the allowance for impalrment loss
Batance a1 the beginning of the year G628 628
Increase/(decrease) In allowance recognized in profit or loss té‘!_B}
Balance at the end of the year : 623

Detalls regarding credit risk, liguidity risk and market risk, including financial assets that are either past due or impaired, are disclosed in Nota

24,

The non-gurrent trade recelvable of $7.257 million (2014; $8.488 million) represents deferral of payment for sale of land for the

Wolll Creak.

project at

Noncurrent loan receivables represent second morigages with purchasers of properties sold at Stanhope Gardens amounting to $0.526
million {2014 $0.926 million) as part of UrbanGrowlh NSW's moderate income housing programme. The second mortgages must be repaid

within 15 years or on sale of the properties, whichever comes first.

11 Inventories

Current
Work in progress 200,567 213,405
Developad fand 37477 95.014
238,044 308,419
Mon-currant
Work in progress A6,067 85,988
Undeveloped land 323, 755 335,147
- 374,822 401,145
Total 612,866 709,564

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes $13.856 million (2014:% 4.782 million) in respact of write-downs of inventory to net

realisable value.,
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2015 2014
%000 $000
11 Inventories (continued)
Details of Inventaries:
Developed land 37,477 95,014
Total developad land 3T.477 95,014
Detalls of Inventories:
Undevelopad land 589,245 619,332
Write-clown 1o net realisable valug {-1'_;‘:.‘;355] (4.782)
Total undevelopead land 575,389 614,550
Details of inventories:
Acquisition costs 264.201 409,933
Development cosls 318 GBS 255,643
Other costs 29976 43,988
812 BEG 709,564
12 Other
Current
Prepayments 5,388 48922
5,388 4,922
Non-current
Prepayments - 29
= 29
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2015 2014
£'000 $'000
13 Property, Plant and Equipment
Land '
At fair value = 1187
Buildings
At gross carnying amount - 1.658
Accumulated depreciation - (141}
MNet carrying amount at fair value - 1517
Leasshold improvements
Al gross carmying amount 3.2?3 3.521
Accumulated depraciation (1,783 (1.440)
MNet carrying amount a1 fair value _:l,.ﬁ_ﬂ;ﬁ 2,081
Motor vehicles
At gross carmying amount 208 210
Accumulated depreciation 1,5&] (61}
MNet carrying amount at fair value 142 149
Plant and equipment
At pross carmying amolnt 3703 4111
Accumulated depreciation {xﬁ&ﬂ {15500
Met carrying amount at fair value 2,016 2561
Total net carrying amount 3,653 7.465
Fair value of Land and Building
Ag stated in Mote 1.22. land and bullding are carried at fair value as shown below
All land and bulldings were disposed of during the financial year,
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
£'000 £'000 $'000 $'000

Land and Bullding
Land & building =

Land and Building fair vatue -

There were no ransfers bebween levels 1 and 2 during the period.
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13 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£'000 $°000 $'000 £'000
Land and Building
Land E 1.157 Z 1.157
Building = 1517 * 1517
Land and Building fair value S 2674 = 2674

There wera ng transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the penod.

in 2014, UrbanGrowlh NSW management re-assessed the falr value on the basis of falr value higrarchy level 2 using observable market prices
of similar properies within ciose proximity and the difference was insignificant. The valuation process was based on markel approach where
land and building is valued on comparable propery sales transactions and adjustments made (o reflect the location, topography, constrisction,
age. condition and size, any requlred conversion or refurbisiiment work, legal/physical restriction and enhancements.

Reconciliation

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current reparting periad

s 5al oul baiow:

Leasehodd Plant &
: Bulidings at fair Muotor vahicles at '
2015 Land at fair value Improvements at g equipment at fair Tetal
valug fedr vala Tair valua vikish
£'000 £000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net carrying amount at 1457 1517 2,081 1489 2,561 7465
beginning of the year
Acditions 45 176 221
Disposals (1157} (1,422) {167) (26) (88) (2,860)
Depreciation expanse {95} {41’9] (26} tﬁaﬁ'}l (1,173)
Net carrying amount at A E =
the end of the year i 42 e 2N
: T Leasahold Flant &
Land at fair Bulidings at fair ; Mator vehicles at " .
2014 impaovaments at B equipment at fair Total
value value tair valua fair value firthe
£000 £°000 £°000 5'000 £'000 000
Met carrying amount at 1,886 1.847 2297 140 2,836 9,006
beginning of the year s
Additions 270! 185 204 77 218 954
Disposals {999 (392) {41 (20) (1.462)
Depreciation expense [(123) {420) {27} {463) {1.033)
Heit canying amount ot 1,187 1,517 2,081 149 2,561 7,465

tha end of the year
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2015 2014
$'000 £°000
14 Intangible Assets
Computer software and websita
Gross carrying amount
Carrying amount at beginning of the vear 3,895 3.850
Additlons 281 45
Carrying amount at end of the year 4,186 3,895
Accumulated amortisation and Impairment
Carrying amolint at beginning of the year (3, 734) (3,656)
Armortisation expense and impairment {114} ' (T8}
Carrying amount at end of the year {3 848) (3,734)
MNet carying amount at end of the year 338 161
15 Deferred Tax Assets
The batapce comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Depreciation and amortisation el 538
Provisions 11.&53 10,163
Surndry 18 244
Fair value adjustmants 02 584
12,045 11,529
Movements
Carrying amount at beginning of the vear 1_1'_,_5;2'::} 10,299
Credited/{charge] 1o the Statement of comprehensive income 1&?[ 131
Credited/{charge) to equity 583 1,098
Carrying amount at end of the year 1'2..545 11,529
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2015 2014
$'000 £'000
16 Trade and Other Payables
Current
Trade payables 22,118 21,830
Uneamed income 15,859 12,886
Bonds and depasits held 38,070 23,170
Accrusd expenses 27,882 24,869
Other payables 3?4' 297
Retentions 1.487 1.723
105,780 84,835
Non-current
Bonds and deposits held - 4650
Accried axpenses 752 980
752 5,640
17 Current Tax Liabilities
Camying amount al baginning of the year 22.{!5_].6 13,393
Income tax expensa 54,511 50,031
Movemant in deferred tax assets/| abilities) 247 58
Tax paynient (53.485) (41,446)
Carrying amount at end of the year 13,399 22,036
18 Provisions
{a) Employee banefits - currant
Provision for annual leave 2,024 1,519
Provision for long service leave
-Expecied to be settied within 12 months 475 a7a
- Expected to be settled after 12 months 5468 4.313
Provision for superannuation liability (see Note 19) 21327 18,6509
Accrued on-cosls 1289 9412
Qthdr 123
30,553 26,005
{b) Employee benefits - non-current
Provision for long service leave BT 532
Accrued on-costs T 66
594 598
Total employee benefits 31,147 26,603
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000
18 Provisions (continued)
{c) Other provisions - current
Pravision 1o complete projects 11.!3..?30 66,413
Provision for rebates 2,735 2913
Pravision for other »
Provision for dividend to NSW Treasury 75,356 67,354
:I.BB._BH., 136,680

Thie diviciend payabie on profit after tax is $75.356 million (2014: $67.354million). The dividend répresents the fixed amount agread with the

shargholder ministers (Notel. 10).

{d) Other provisions - non-currant

Provision to complete prajects '2:2',2"-_'0'2 53.037
Prowision for rebates 22581 3173
Provision for other 524 524
25,050 56,734
Total current and non-current provisions
Current employee benefits 30,553 26,005
Current other provisions 188871 136.880
Total current provisions 219,424 162,685
MNor-current employes benefits 594 598
Ner-current ether provisions 25,050 56,734
Total non-current provisions 25,644 57,332
245,068 220,017
Recongiliations of the camang amount of each class of provision are set aut below:
Employes benefits
2015 Provision for  Provision for Superannuation Accrued Cther Total
annual leave long service lHatility on-costs
leave
$'000 5$'000 £'000 $'000 £°000 £'000
Carrying amount at beginning of the year 1519 5324 18,659 g78 123 26,603
Additional provisions recognised 2428 1660 ‘3184 358 - 7.630
Amounts used during the year {1923} 1524) 1516) (123} {3.086)
Carrving amount at end of the year 2024 6,460 S2132T 1336 = 31,147
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18 Provisions (continued)
2014 Provision for ~ Provision for  Superannuation Accrued Other Total
annual leave long service liability on-costs
leave

$'000 $'000 $'000 £'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at beginning of the year 1,218 5.801 14:381 948 22,348
Additional provisions recognisaed 1732 T67 6461 30 J.EE 9113
Amounts used during the year '{.'1.4'311 {1244} (2,183 - (4,858}
Carrying amount at end of the year 1,519 5324 18,659 978 123 26,603
Other provisions
2015 Pravislon for Prowvision for Prowusion to Prewvision for Total

dividend to NSW rabalas complets other
Treasury progects

$£'000 5000 £'000 £'000 000
Efar:_.'ing armount at beginning of the 67.354 6,086 119,450 Ea4 193,414
Additicnal provisions recognised 75,356 1219 71,923 148,498
Re-:?m:tir-ns In provisions from (67,354) 2 314) (59,933) (129,601)
pa}l'ﬂeﬂ’,ﬁ "
Change in provisions from 5 1,610 1610
re-measurement
Carrying amount at end of the year 75,386 4,991 133,050 524 213,921
2014 Provision for Prowisian for Prowision to Provision for Total

dividand to NSW rabates somplets other
Treasury projects

$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
E:;Trlng amount at beginning of the 58320 5.650 116,366 GE1 181,035
Additional provisions regognised 67,364 2,727 G5, 9590 15_?_".0?1
Reductions in provisions from e s e
payments 158.329) (2,300} (92.928) f153.557)
Change in provisions from re- (a78) (157) {1..135]
MEASLINeMEn
Carrying amount at end of the year 67,354 6,086 119,450 524 183,414
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19 Superannuation
Fund information

The. Pooled Fund holds in trust the investments of the closed NSW public sector superannuation schames:
= State Authorities Superannuation Scheme [SASS)
« State Authorities Non-contributory Superannuation Scheme (SANCS)

»  Stale Superannuation Scheme (S55)

These schemes are all defined benefit schemes - at least a component of the final benefit s derived from a multiple of member salary and
years of membership, Members recaive lump sum or pension benefits on retirement, death, disablement and withdrawal,

All-the Schemes are closed to new members

The schemes in the Pooled Fund are established and governed by the following NSW legislation: Superannuation Act 1916, State Authorities
Superannuation Act 1987, State Authorities Non-Contributory Superannuation Scheme Act 1987, and their associated regulations.

The schemes in the Peoled Fund are established and governed by the following NSW legislation: Superannuation Act 1916, State Authorities
Superannuation Act 1987, Police Regulation (Superannuation) Act 1906, State Authorities Non-Contributory Superannuation Act 1987, and
their associated regulations.

The schemes in the Pooled Fund are exempt public sector superannuation schemes under the Commonwealth Superannuation tndustry
(Supérvision) Act 1993 (SI5). The SIS Legislation treats exempt public sector superannuation funds as complying funds for concessional
taxation and superannuation guarantee pUrposes:

Under a Heads of Government agreement, the New South Wales Government undertakes to ensure that the Pooled Fund will conform with the
principles of the Commonwealth's retirement incomes policy relating to preseration, vesting and reporting 1o members and that members’
benefits are adeguatsly protected.

The Mew South Wales Government prudentially monitors and audits the Poaled Fund and the Trustee Board activities in-a manner consistent
with the prugential controls of the SIS fegistation. These provisions are in addition o other legislative obligaticns on the Truslee Board and
internal processes that monitar the Trustee Board's adherence to the principles of the Commonweaith’s retirement incomes policy,

An actuanal investigation of the Pooled Fund s performed every three years. The lest actuarial investigation was performed as at 30 June
2012, The next actuanal investigation is due as at 30 June 2015 and the report |s expected to be released by the end of 2015.

The Fund's Trustee is respansibie for the governance of the Fund. The Trustee has & legal obligation to act solely in the best interests of fund
benefigiaries. The Trustee has the following roles:

= Administration of the fund and payment to the beneficiaries from fund assets when required in accordance with the fund rules:

* Management and investment of the fund assets: and

* Compliance with other applicable regulations.

There are a number of rigks to which the Fund expases the Employer. The more significant risks relating to the defined benefits are!

* Invastment risk - The risk that investment returns will bie lower than assumed and the Emplayer will need to increase contributions to offset
this shartfall,

* Lomgevity risk = The nsk that pensioners live longer than assumed. increasing future pensions.

* Pension indexation risk - The risk that pensions will increase at a rate greater than assumed, iIncreasing futlire pensions.

= Salary growth risk - The risk that wages or satares (on which future benefit amounts for active members will be based) will rise more rapidly
than assumed, Increasing defined benefit amounts and thereby requinng additional employer contributions,

* Legistative risk - The risk is that legisiative changes could be made which increase the cost of providing the defined benefits.

The definéd benefit fund assets arg mvested with independent fund managers and have a diversified asset mix, The Fund has no significant
concentration of investment risk or liquidity risk.

There were no fund amendments. curtaliments or sattlements during the year,
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19 Superannuation (continued)
Superannuation position as at 30 June 2015

SAS5 SANCS 885 TOTAL
30-Jun-15 30-Jun-15 30-Jun-15 30-Jun-15
Member numbers

Contributors 10 16 6 3z

Deferred benefits - 5 L]
Pensioners - . 13 i3
Pensions fully commiuted = - 2 2
Superannuation position for AASE 119 purposes $'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Accrued liability (Mote 1) T.744 1738 34,095. 43,578
Estimated reserve account balance [3.53?! (971) Il?,ﬁgﬂ} (22.251)
1. Deficity(surplus) 4,057 768 16,502 21,327
"2, Future Service Liztiility (Note 2) 930 530 424 1914

(-1, - 2. and subject to a minimum of 2erc)

4, Net [asset)/liabllity to be recognised in statement of o T
financial position (1. + 3. s A00% iy 16,502 327

Note 1
The accrued liability includes a contribution tax provision. Thisis caloulated based on grassing up the deficit/(surplus) less the allowance for

past service expenses and insurable death and disability liabifities at a contribution tax rate of 15%.

Note 2:
The Future Service Liability (FSL) does not have 10 be recognised by an employer, |1 1S only used 10 determing if an asset calling limit should be
imposed (AASE 119 para 64). Under AASE 119 any prepaid superannuation asset recognised cannot excead the present value of any
economic benefits that may be available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan, Where the
“surplus in excess of recovery” is 2ero. no asset ceiling fimit is imposed. {Note: this also includes & contribution tax provision).

SASS SANCS 888 Total

Financial Year to Financial Year to Financial Year 10 Financial Year to
30 June 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015

£'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Reconciliation of the Net Defined Banefit Liability/{Asset)
Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) at start of year 3.812 BE3 13,885 18,860
Current service cosl 250 82 252 584
Mot Interest on the net defined benefit liability/{asset) bacliis 30 A8 657
Past service oost - . =
(Gains]/losses ansing from settlements E . -
Actusl return on Fund assets less Interest income (294} (T1) iuﬂﬂi {1.651)
A s g 120 1 s 1
:?5:?1{1';|u[§1?15”|m&5 arsing from changes in financkal '_E_ES-_ 63 _2_-9-?:2 3941
Actuarial (gainsl/losses arsing fram llability experlience 166} {148) 384 170
Adjustment for effect of asset cailling L . !
Employer contributions (2113 (63) {242) (516}
Effects of transfers in/out dug to business combinations L ~
and disposals . :
Net Defined Benefit Liability/{Asset) at end of year 4,057 768 15,602 21,327
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19 Superannuation (continued)

BASS SANCS 555 Total
Financial Yearto  Financial Yearto  Financial Yearto  Financial Year to
30 Juna 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015
$'000 £'000 §'000 $'000
Reconciliation of the Fair Value of Fund Assets
Fair value of Fund assets at beginning of the year 3,685 843 16,142 20,670
Interest income 128 a3 568 729
Actual return on Fund assets iess Interest income 204 71 :LIEE 1.651
Emplover contributions 244 63 242 516
Contributions by participants 89 o 142 231
Benefits paid (573 (144) (825 (1,542)
Taxes, premiumes & sxpenses paid ._[4_'.Fj 5 33 (4]
Transfars in =
Contnbutions to accumulation secton - -
Sattlements - -
Exchange rate changes - - -
_Fair value n::'r_!-'und assels at end of the year 3,687 871 17,583 22,251
Reconciliation of the Defined Benefit Obligation
:ﬁsn:m value of defined benefit obligations at beginning 7.497 1,806 30,027 39,330
year
Current seniace cast 250 82 252 584
Interest cost 263 63 1,058 1,385
Contributions by participants 89 [ 142 231
it ol b 124 12 45 182
:;;l;?g:iﬁzmsmus&&s arsing from changes In financial 206 83 2072 3241
Actuarial (gains)/losses ansing fram liabilily experience {B5) {148) as4d i7i
Benefits paid (573} (144) (825 11.542)
Taxes, premiums & expenses paid {47 5 38 {41
Transfers in/out due to business combinalions and - . .
disposal
Contributions to accumulalion saction - -
Past service cosl - - -
Settlemants - =
Exchange rate changes - .
:ar‘t:.enl vaiue of defined benefit obligations at end of the 7,744 1,739 34;095 43578
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19 Superannuation (continued)

SASS SANCS 555 Taotal

Financial Yearto  Financial Yearto  Financial Yearto  Financial Year to
30 June 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015

$'000 $'000 000 $'000

Reconciliation of the effect of the Asset Ceiling
Adjustment for effect of asset celling at beginning of the
year

Change in the effect of assel ceiling T

Adjustment for effect of asset ceiling at end of the year 8 = -

The adjusiment for the effect of asset ceiling has been deétermined based on the maximum economic benefit available (o the éntity in the
farm of reductions in future employer contributions.

Fair value of Fund assets

All Pooled Fund assets are jrvested by STC at arm's length through independent fund managers, assets are nol separately invested for each
entity and it is not possible or appropriate to disaggregate and attribute fund assets to individual entities. As such, the disclosures Delow
relate to total assets of the Pooled Fund.

As at 30 June 15

- q:&ﬂ ::i:?k?ag ggmm Unobservable
Asset category Total ($'000) for Identical "~ Inputs i|l1pul5
assels Level 2 ($'000) Level 3 ($'000)
Level 1 ($'000) i
Short Term Secunties 2642 96 2546 0
Alistralian Fixed Intereat 2,657 1 2,639, 17
International Fiked Interest 1,004 a 1,004 0
Australian Equities 10407 9,899 504 4
International Equities 13..111 9,963 2,585 563
Privparty 3453 948 TiE 1,786
Arernatives 7470 622 3,020 3528
Total* 40,444 2_|1:5H29 13,016 5,898
The percentage investod (n each asset class at the date of the Statement of financal positian:
30-Jun-15
Short Term Securities 6.5%
Australian Fixed Interest GE%
Internaticnal Fixed Interest 2.5%
Australian Equities 25. T
Internaticnal Equities 22.4%
Property B.6%
Altermatives 17.T%
Tatal 100.0%
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19 Superannuation (continued)

~Additional o the assets disclosed above, a1 30 June 2015 the Poolad Fund has provisions for receivables/| payables) estimatad ta be around
$1.74 billion. This gives total estimated assats of $42.2 billion,

Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for idenfical assets or liabilities, The assets in this level are listed shares; listed unit trusts.

Leval 2 - inputs other than guoted prices observable for the asset ar liability either directly or indirectly. The assats in this level are cash;
fotes: government, semi-government and carparate bonds: unlisted trusts containing where guoted prices are avallable in sctive markets for
Identical assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or llability that are not based on phservable market data, The assels in this level are unlisted property; unlisted
shares; untisted infrastructure; distressed debt; hedge funds.

Derivatives, including fulures and options, can be used by investment managers, However, each manager's investment mandate clearly
states that derivatives may only be used o facilitate efficient cashfiow management or to hedge the portfolio against market movaments and
cannot be used for speoulative purposes or geanng of the investment portfolio. As such managers make limited use of derivatives,

Fair value of entity's own financial Instruments

Th fair value of the Pooled Fund assets as at 30 June 2015 include $209.2 milhon in NSW government bonds..

0Of the direct properties owned by the Pooled Fund:

- GPNSW occupies pant of a property owned by the Pooled Fund with a fair value of $159 million (30 June 2014: $153 millian)

- NSW Ambulance occuples part of a property S0% owned by the Pooled Fund with a fair value of $204 million {30 June 2014: $205 millicn).

Significant Actuarial Assumptions at the Reporting Date 30-June-15

Discount Fate 3.02% pa

2.50% 2015/2016 10 2018/2019; 3.50%
2019/2020; 3.00% pa 202172022 to
2024;2025; 3.90% pa thereaftar

Salary Increase rate (excluding promotional increases)

2.50% 2015/2016; 2.75% 2006/2017 &

fte AL P creaga 2017/2018; 2.50% pa thereafter

as perthe 2012 Actuarial Investigation of

Pensioner mortality the Poaled Fund

Sensitivity Analysis

The-entity's total defined banefit obligation as at 30 June 2015 under several scenanos s presented below. The total defingd benafit obligation
disclosed is inclusive of the contribution tax provision which is calcutated based on the asset level at 20 June 2015

Scenarios A to F relate to sensitivity of the total defined benefit obligation to economic assumptions, and scenaries G and H relata 1o sensitivity
to demographic assumplions.

Scenario A Scenario B

Hase a0y -1% discount rate +1% discount rate

Discount rate 203% 2.03% 4.03%
Rate of CPl increase -as above as above -85 above
Salary inflation rate - a@sabove as above ‘a5 above
Defined benaflit obligation ity SN
$000 50,500 28.014
Scenario G Scenario D

S e +0.5% CP| increase -0.5% CP| decrease

Discount rate Bﬂahli\te as above ; B‘SEHWE
Rate of CPI increase asa‘bw& above rates plus 0.5% pa Hhﬁ‘lﬁll’&tﬂlﬂ?@ .a’-:'rﬁ pa
Salary inflation rate 15 as above 83 above
So00 T cmesen 470 4643 ages
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19 Superannuation (continued)

Scenario E Scenario F

Base Case +0.5% Salary Increase 0,5% Salary decrease

Discount rate a5 above as above a5 ahoys

Rate of CPI increase as abole: as above ‘a5 above.

Salary inflation rate asabove above rates plus 0.5% pa -‘qbw_u rates less ﬁﬁéﬁjnﬂ

Defined benefit obligaticn 43;.5;{9 43,008 43178
£000

Scenario G Scenario H

Base Case +0.5% Pensioner mortality -0.5% Pensloner martality

Definad benefit abligation 43579 431988 43982

F000

The defined benefit obligation has been recalculated by changing the assumptions as ocutlined above, whilst retaining all other assumplions.,

Asset-Liabllity matching strategies

The Trustee monitors 1S asset-lability nisk continuocusly in setting Mg investment strategy, 1t also monitors cash flows to manage liguidity
requirements.

Funding arrangements

Funding arrangements are reviewad at least every three vears following the release of the triennial actuarial review and was last reviewed
follawing comnpletion of the triennial réview as at 30 June 2012, Contribution rates are set after discussions between the empioyer, STC and
NSW Traasury.

The next triennial review as at 30 June 2015, the report is expected 1o be released by the end of 2015

Funding positions are reviewed annually and funding arrangements may be adjusted as required after each annual réview,

a) Surplus/deficit

The following s a summary of the 30 June 2015 financial position of the Fund calculated in accordance with AAS 25 "Financial Reporting by
Superannuation Plans";

SASS SANCS 555 TOTAL
30-Jun-15 A0-Jun-15 30-Jun-15 30-Jun-15
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Accruad benefits 5,864 1243 16,472 23,579
Met rrarket value of Fund assets - (3.687) (971} [17.683) {22,251)
Net (surplus)/deficit 2477 272 {1,321) 1,328
h) Contribution recommendations
Recammended contribution rates for the entily are;
SASS SANCS 585
multipleof = % member salary  multiple'of membear
__member  contributions
_contributions.
19 2.5% 16
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c) Economic assumptions

The econamic assumplions adopted for the 2012 actuarial review of the Fund are;

Weighted-average assumptions

Expected rate of retum on Fund assets backing current pension liabilities

Expected rate of return on Fund assets backing other liabllities

Expected salary increase rate [SASS: SANCS, 555)

B.3% pa
7.3% pa

2.7% pato 30 June 2018 then 4.0% pa thareatter

Expected rate of CPI incréase 2.5% pa
dj Expected Contribution
SASS SANCS 555 Total
Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year Financkal Year
to to to to
30 June 2016 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 30 June 2016
pE:EIz:;ted employer contributions to be paid in the next reporting :I.Tﬂ: &8 22? 465
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit ol¥igation is 14.2 years
Profit and Loss Impact
SASS SANCS 888 Total
Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
to to to to
30 June 2015 30 June 2015  30June 2015 30 Juns 2015
Current service gost 250 82 251 583
et interest 136: 30 491 B57
Past service cost - -
{Gains)/Loss on setllement - -
Defined benefit cost 386 112 742 1,240
Other Comprahensive Income
SASS SANCS 3538 Total
Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
to 1o 1o to
30 June 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015 20 June 2015
Actuanal (gains) losses on liabiiities 265 {73 3402 3.504
Actual return on Fund assels less Interest income {294} (T1) {1,288 {1,651}
Adjusiment for effect of asset ceiling B - §
Total re measurement in Other Comprehensive Incomea {29) (144) 2116 1,943
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Superannuation position as at 30 June 2014

SASS SANCS 885 TOTAL

30-Jun-14 30-Jun-14 30-Jun-14 30-Jun-14
Member numbers
Contributors iy 19 T 38
Deferred benefits B * o
Pensioners - = E ﬂ 12
Pensions fully commuled - 2 a
Superannuation pesition for AASE 119 purposes $'000 £'000 $'000 £'000
Aocrued liability (Note 1) 7487 1.806 20,027 39,330
Estimated resarve acoount balance (3.585) {944 {16,143} (20,671}
L Deficit/(surplus) 3,912 862 13,885 18,659
2. Future Service Liabllity {Mote 2) 1222 759 626 2807
3. Surplus in excess of recovery avallable fram schemes - = .
[-1. - 2. and subject to @ minimurm of zero)
4, Net (asset)/liability to be recognised in statement of 3912 862 13,885 18,650

financial position (1. + 3.)

Mota 1t
The accrued liability includes a contribution tax provision. This is calculated based on grossing up the deficit fess the allowance for past service
eyponses and insurable death and disability liabilities at a contribition tax rate of 15%,

Nate 2
The Future Service Liability (FSL) does not have 10 be recognised by an employer. 1t is only used 1o determing if an asset ceiling limit should be
Imposed (AASE 119 para 64). Under AASE 119, any prepaid superannuation asset recognised cannot exceed the present value of any
economic benafits that may be available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. Where the
“surplus in excess of recoveny™ is zero, no asset ceiling limit ks impasad, (Note: this also includes a contribution tax provision).

SASS SANCS 555 Total

Financial Year to  Financial Year o Financial Yearto  Financial Year to
30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000 £'000
Reconciliation of the Net Defined Benefit Liahility/{Asset)
Met Defined Banefit Liability/(Asset) at start of year 2,750 A447 11183 14,380
Current service cosi 229 67 24z 538
Met Interest on the net defined benefit llability/(assel) 102 i5 423 538
Past service cost - -
(Gains)/losses arising from settlements = - -
Actual return on Fund assels less Interest income {357) {23} H‘._.?_ﬁl_- {2,:213)
Actuanal {gains)/losses ansing from changes in = ’
uemugragh-g assumptions
gzizzx;s:i{ﬁgrinsmcsses arisaing from changes in financial 402 140 1228 LT770
Actuarial {gains)/losses arising from liability experience 958" 3449 2,800 4,105
Adjustment for effect of asset cailing * : N )
Emplover contributions {170) 163) {ml (459}
Net Defined Benefit Uanllinyfosseﬁ_aat end of year 3,912 862 13,885 18,650
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SASS SANCS 885 Total
Financial Yearto  Financial Yearto  Financial Yearto  Financial Year to
30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014
$'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
Reconciliation of the Fair Value of Fund Assets
Fair valug of Fund assets at beginning of the year 3,888 1026 14,122 18,036
Interest income 145 } 38 . 530 Ti4
Actual return on Fund assets less interest income 257 a3 1763 2213
Employer contributions :I.Tﬁ 63 : HE 459
Contributions by participants 94 108" 202
Benefits pald rz_'.djzﬁ; {287} (803) {1.916)
Taxes, premiums & expenses paid [43) 10 j 4} [37)
Transfers in - L
Contributions o accumulation section v *
Settlements - -
Exchange rate changes - -
Fair value of Fund essets atend of the year ‘3,585 944 16,142 20,671
Reconciliation of the Defined Benefit Obllgation
::T;:T;aarlua of defined benefit abligations at beginning 6,639 1473 2&3‘5 33.417
Current service cost 229 67 2420 538
Interast cost 246 54 951 1.251
Contributions by participants Q4 J.IJE 02
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in g g
demographic assumplions
::;L:T;Ir:tll:]gl:: ns)/losses arsing from changes In financial 402 140 1.228 3 L7710
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from liability experience 956 349 z‘mpu 4.105
Benefits paid Ii,ﬂ_i’.ﬁl {287) {ﬁ!ﬁ]- {1.916)
Taxes. premiums & expenses paid [43) 10 [4) {37)
Transfers in .. . -
Contributions to accumulation section - -
Past service cosl + -
Settlements i -
Exchange rate changes B - -
Present value of defined benefit obligations at end of the B 497 1.806 30,027 39,330

year
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SASS SANCS 855 Total

Financial Yearto  Financial Yearto  Financial Yearto  Financial Year to
30 June 2014 A0 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 20414
$'000 £'000 £'000 $'000

Reconciliation of the effect of the Asset Ceiling

Adjustment for effect of asset ceiling at beginning of the
year

Change in the effect of asset ceiling . : -
Adjustment for effect of asset ceiling at end of the year - - - -

Fair value of Fund assets

Al Pocled Fund asseis are Invested by STC at arm's length through independent fund managers. assets are not separately invested for each
entity and il is not possible or appropriate to diseggregate and attribute Tund asssts o individual entities. As such, the disclosures Delow
relate to total assels of the Peoled Fund,

Asat 30 June 14

Quoted prices in

active markets SIgNIMcant ;. o cervable
Assat category Total ($'000) for identical : °'!’“F:;hu}; inputs
: a:ssel.ﬁ Level 2 ($'000) Level 3($'000)
Level 1 ($'000) -

Short Term Securities 2453 1573 880

Bustralian Fixed Interest 2365 11 2.3:'.‘.';4

International Fixed Interest 881 - 881
Australian Equities 11738 11,485 241 3

Intarnational Equities 10,954 8173 2 TEL
Propery 3273 804 Ga2 1.687
Allernatives 6329 5EB5 4897 BGT
e iy 37,994 22,711 12,726 2,557

The percentage invested in each asset class at the date of the Statement of financial position:

30-Jun-14
Short Term Secunties B.5%
Australian Fixed Interest 6.2%
Intermationat Fied Interest 2.3%
Australian Equilies 30.9%
Intarnational Equities 28.8%
Property 8.6%
Alternatives 16.7%
Tatal 1040, 0%
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*Additional o the assets disclosed above, at 30 June 2014 Pooled Fund has provisions for receivables/( pavables) estimated to be around
$2.2 billlon, giving an estimated assets totalling around $40.2 billicn,

Level 1 - guoted prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities. The assets in this level arae listed shares; listed unit trusts.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly. The assets in this level are cash;
notes; government, semi-government and corporate bonds: unlisted trusts containing where quoted prices are available in active markets for
identical assets or liabilties,

Leved 3 - inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data. The assels in this level are unlisted property; unlisted
shares: untisted infrastructure; distressed debt; hedge funds,

Derivatives, including futures and options, can be used by investment managers. Howeaver, each manager's investmeant mandate clearly states
that derivatives may only be used 1o facilitate afficient cashfliow management ar to hedge the portfolio against market movements and cannot
he used for speculative purposes or géaring of the investment portfolio, As soch managers make limited use of derivatives,

Fair value of entity's own financial instrumants
Th Tair value of the Pooled Furd assets include as at 30 June 2014 of $173.9 million in NSW government bonds,

Significant Actuarial Assumptions at the Reporting Date 30-June-14
Salary increase rate (excluding promational increases)
2014/2015 227% pa
2015/2016 10 2017/2018 2.500 pa
2018/2018 10 2012/2023 3.0% pa
2023 onwards 3.5% pa
Rate of CRI Increase 2.5% pa
Discount rate 3.57T% pa

a5 per the 2012 Actuarial Investigation

Pensioner mortality of the Pooled Fund

Sensitivity Analysis

The entity’s total defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2014 under several scenarios s presented below. The 1otal defined benefit obligation
disclosed Is inclusive of the contribution tax provision which is calculated based on the asset level at 30 June 2014.

Scenarics A to F refate to sensitivity of the total defined banefit obligation to economic assumptions, and scenarios G and H relate to sensitivity
o demographic assumplions.

Scenarlo A Scenario B

Bass Case -1% discount rate +1% discount rate

Discount rate 357% 257% 457%
Rate of GP increase a5 above as above ‘asabove.
Salary inflation rate 85 Bhove as above (85 above
Defined benefit obligation Sk P
£000 38,330 45,630 34257
Soenario C Scenario D

Base Case +0.5% CP| increase -0.5% CPl dacrease

Discount rate 8% above: as above as above
Rate of CP| increase i’.};‘!‘.ﬁ 3.0% lﬂ‘é
Salary inflation rate a;m'dwa as above <85 above

fi 1 - . o e

Pafined benefit obligation 3'9-:3351 41,819 '._3?-."981

£000
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Seenario E Scenario F
Base Case +0.5% Salary Increase -0.5% Salary decrease
Discount rate as above as above as above
Rate of CPlincrease as above as above as above
Salary inflation rate as above above rates plus 0.5% pa “above rates less 0.5% pa-
Defined benefit obligation 39,330 30,831 33.8-5‘2
$000
Scenario G Scenario H
Base Case +0.5% Pensioner mortality -0.5% Pensioner mortality
Defined benefit obligation 39,330 29,022 30,655

$000
The defined benefit obligation has bean recalculated by changing the assumptions as outlined above, whilsl retaining all other assumplions.

Aszet-Llability matching strategies

The Trustes monitors Its asset-lakility fisk continuously in setting its investment strategy. It also monltors cash flows to manage liquidity
reduiraments,

Funding arrangements

Furiding arrangements are reviewed at (east every three vears following tha rélease of the trignnial actuanal réview and was 1ast reviewed
following completion of the triennial review as at 30 June 2012, Contribution rates are set after distussions between the emplayer, STC and
NSW Treasury,

Funding positions are reviewed annually and funding arrangements may be adfusted as required aftar each annual review,

al Surplus/deficit

The following is & summary of the 30 June 2014 financial position of the Fund calcutated in accordance with AAS 25 “Financial Reporting by
Superannuation Plans™:

SASS SANCS 858 TOTAL
30-Jun-14 A0-Jun-14 30-Jun-14 30-Jun-14
£000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Acersed benefits 5861 1.308 15534 22,703
Net market value af Fund assets (3585) (943} 116,142} [20,670)
Net (surplus)/deficit 2276 365 (808 2,033
o) Contribution recommendations
Recommended contribulion rates for the entity are:
BASS SANCS 555
multiple of % member salary  multipls of mamber
memar contributions
‘contributions
18 25 1.6
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c) Economic assumplions

The econarmic assumplions adopted for the 2012 actuadal review of the Fund are:

Welighted-average assumptions

Expected rate of return on Fund assets backing current pension llabilities

Expected rate of return on Fund assets backing othar liabilities

Expected salary increase rate (SASS, SANCS, 555)

83% pa
7.3% pa

2.7% pa 1o 30 June 2018 then 4.0% pa thereafier

Expectad rate of CPI increase 2.5% pa
a) Expected Contribution
SASS SANCS 858 Total
Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
to to to to
30 June 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015 30 June 2015
E:E;thd employer cantributions 1o be paid in the next reporting 178 &5 173 416
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 14.5 vears
Profit and Loss Impact
BASS SANCS 858 Total
Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
to to to to
30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014
Current service cost 229 &7 242 538
Met inlerest 101 16 421 538
Past service cost = .
(Gains}/Loss on settlement = -
Defined benefit cost 330 83 663 1,076
Other Comprehensive Income
SASS SANCS 858 Total
Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
{{4] ta to to
30 June 2044 30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014
Actuarial (gains) losses on liabilities 1358 489 4028 5.875
Actual return on Fund assets less Interest Incame (357} (93) {1,763) (2.213)
Adjustment for effect of asset ceiling -
Total re measurement in Other Comprehensive Income 1,001 396 2,265 3662
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Current
Unsecured loans at face value {1} 27113 59,440
Unamaortised discounts 542 1241
Total current borrowlngs 27,715° 60,681
Mon-currant
Unsecured loans at face value (i) - 27473
Total non-current borrowings - 27,173
Repayment of berrowings
Mot later than 1 year L 60,681
Between 1 and 5 years = 27,173
Total borrowings 27,715 87,854

Summary of borrowing arrangements:

1) Fixad rate loans with NSW Treasury Corporation (TGorp) with maturity periods not exceading three years (2014: three years). The
weighted average interest rate is 6.00% p.a, (2014: 4.50% p.a.).

(i UrbanGrowth NSW has undrawn facilites sufficient to meet obligations as and when they fall due,
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The balance comprises temporary differences attribulable to;

2015 2014
$000 $'000
Fair value adjustments 322 206
Prepayments :I.,-H.:I.l.'l 1,299
Sundry = a1
- 1,732 2,146
Movements
Carying amount at beginning of the year 2146 2071
Charge 1o the Statement of comprehensive iIncome [41,4] 75
Debited/(change) to eguity -
Carrying amount at end of the year L?E! 2,146
22  Contributed capital
Contrituted capital comprises capital and contributed assets acquired free of charge.
23 Reconciliation of Cash Flows arising from Operating Activities to Net Profit for the year
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
{a) Far the purpose of the Statement of cash flows. cash and cash
equivalents include cash at bank and cash on hand. Cash at the end of
the financial year as shaown in he Slatement of cash flows s reconciled to
the related items in the Statement of financial position as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 9) 211683 92,508
[} Reconciliation from the Nel cash flows from operating aclivities to the Net
Profit for the year :
Met cash flows (usad inl/ from cperaling activities 1242693 128221
Depreciation and amorlisation (1287} {1.111)
Gan/lloss) from sale of property. plant and egulpment ~ 934 279
Amortization of loan premium Egg B84
Unwinding of discount rate income and expense {LODE] 1619
Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase) in provisions [‘-1:.5‘.105}' {2947
Decrease/{increase) in payables and tax liabilities {-7@_&'?1 33,962
Increase/decreass) in receivables 3,592 (1.751)
Inereasesidecreasa) in inventory and other assats :96,32‘8-} (42,226)
Met Profit for the year 127,187 116,730
(el UrbanGrowth MSW has acoess to financing facilities at reporting date as indicated in Note 20. UrbanGrowth NSW expects to meet i1s

obligations from operating cash flows and procesds of maturing financial assets.

80



Notes to and forming part
of the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

24  Financial Instruments

{This note 15 to be read in conjunction with Note 1,21)

UrbanGrowth NSW's principal financial instruments and risks are outlined below together with its processes for managing risk. These financial
instruments arise directly from its operations, It does nat enter intoe or trade in financial instruments including derivative financial instruments
for speculative purposes.

The Audit-and Risk Management Committes has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of risk management and reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks. Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by

UrbanGrawth NSW to set the risk limits and controfs and to monitor risks. The Audit and Risk Committee has responsibility for oversesing
monitaring of compliance with policies.

Financial instrument categories

Carrying amount Carrying amount

Financial assets Notes Category 2015 2014
3000 £'000

Cass

Cash and cash equivalents 9 M/A 211,;553 92,508

Trade and other receivables 10 Loans and receivables (at 24‘4.15 21,857

amortised cost)

Financial liabilities

Class
= Financial liabilities o
Trade and other payables 1B S AR A rtithd coet Bhﬂﬂﬁ 75973
Financial liabilities Ly
Bdrrowings 29 measurad at amortised cost 24145 87,854
Note:

This analysis sxcludes statutory receivables and payables, prepayments and uneamed revenue as these are not within the scope of AASE 7
Financial Instruments.: Disclosure.

{a) Credit risk

Credit risk s the tisk of financial loss arising from another party to a contract or financial poesition failing to discharge a financial chligation
thereunder. UrbanGrowth NSW's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amounts of the financial assets included in
the Statement of financial position.

There Is no significant concentration of credil risk arising In respect of recelvables, UrbanGrowth MSW is nol materially exposed to

concentrations of credit risk 1o a single trade debtor or group of debtors. There are no debtors which are currently not past due or impaired
whose terms have been renegotiated,

Cash compriges cash on hand and at the bank. interest 15 eamed on daily bank balances.
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All trade debtors are recognised as amounts receivable at reporting date and are reviewed regularly for collectabllity on an ongoing basis. An
allowance for impairment loss of $0 (2014: $628,123) has been raised against trade debiors. No interest is earned on trade debtors.

The only financial assets that are past due or impaired are in the ‘receivables’ category of the Statement of financial position.

£'000 $000 £'000
Total Past due but not Considered
impaired Impaired
2015
< 3 Months overdue 1835 1835 -
Zmonths - 6 months overdue z. s .
> & months overdue 18 18
£'000 $'000 $000
Total Past due but not Considerad
impaired Impaired
2014
< 3 Months overdue 2722 2722
3 months - 6 manths overdue T [ T
> 6 months overdue 646 18 ‘528
Note:

This analysis excludes statutory recelvables, as these are not within the scope of AASE 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure.

UrbanGrowth NSW has given TCorp letters of undertaking 1o various councils/government agencies that certain infrastructure warks will ba
carmed outl. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk of these TCorp letters of undertaking s $24.06 milllon (2014: $24.53 milllon),
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[{#] Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk-arises ([ UrbanGrowth NSW is unable to meet its payment chligations when they fall due. During the current and prior years
there were no defaults or breaches on any Ioans payable or horrowings, No asset has been pledged as coliateral, UrbanGrowth NSW has
undrawn facilities sufficlent to meet obligations as and when they fall due. Exposure 1o liquidity risk is deemed insignificant.

The table below summarisas the maturity profile of UrbanGrowth NSW's financial liabllities and interest rate exposure,

Maturity analysis and interest rate exposure of financial llabilities

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates
Weighted MNaminal Fixed Variable Nen < 1Year 1-5 > 5 Years
average amount Interest Interest interest Years
effective rate rate bearing
interest
rate 000 2000 000 $000 $000 3000 $000
2015
Payables . 87.000 : : 87.000 86,248 752
Bomrowings 6.00% 28,803 28,803 . - 28,803 -
= 115,803 28,803 - 87,000 115,051 T52 -
2014
Payables : 75972 - - 75,972 70,332 5640 -
Borrowings 4.50% 91,532 81,532 . “ 62,729 28.803: -
- 167,504 91,532 . 75972 133061 34443 -
Note:

The nominal amounts disclosed are the contractual undizcounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilily. Therefore the amoums
disclosed will not reconcile to the Statement of financial position. This analysis also exciudes statutory payables, as these are not wilhin the
scope of AASE T Financial Instruments: Disclesura,

{e) Market risk

Market risk (s the nsk thal the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrunent will fluctuate because of changes in markel prices,

UrbanGrowth NSW does not have any investments nor is there any exposure to forelgh currengy or commadity contracts,

id) Interest rate risk

[mterest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial Instrument will fluctuate due to changes in markat interest rates, UrbanGrowth
MSW's exposure to interest rate risks and the effective interest rates of financial assets and liabalities, both recognised and unrecognised at
the balance date, s minimal. UrbanGrowth NSW's debil portfolio s managed by TCoip, the appointed debl managentent contractor.

Exposure 1o interest rate risk anses pamarly through UrbanGrowth NSW's interest bearing liabilitles. This risk s munimized by undertaking
mainly fixed rate borrowings with TCorp. UrbanGrowth NSW does not account for any fixed rate financial instrumants at Tair value through
prafit or loss or s available'for sale.
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The fallowing table provides the sensitivity analysis of Interest rate risk affecting financial assets and liabilities on the operating result. and
equity of UrbanGrowth NSW. UrbanGrowth NSW's borrowings are fixed interest and are held to maturity and therefore are nol affected by
interest rate movements. A reasonably possible change of 4/- 1% is used, consistent with current trends In interest rates, UrbanGrowth
NSW's exposure to interast rate risk is set out below.

Carmying Profit -1% Equity-1% Profit +1% Equity +1%
amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 5000

2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents ?11-333 {2.117) {44?51 2117 445
2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 82,508 (925} (124) 925 184
(8)  Netfairvalue

As stated in Note L.21, &l financial instrumants are carried a1 net fair value, unless stated otherwise, The directors consider that the carmying
amounts of financial assets and fingncial liabilities recorded at amartised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values,

The Statement of Financial Position records the carmying value of borrowings with NSW Treasury Corporation as $27.715 millicn (30 June
2014: $37.854million); the fair value of borrowings is $28.355 milfion (30 June 2014: $89.289 million]. All other financial Instruments are
recognised al amortised cost, Because of the shorl term nature of the Corporation’s financial assets and liabilities, the amortised cost
recognised In the Statement of Financial Pesition approsimatas fair vatue.

25 Expenditure Commitments

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
{a) COperating lease commitments
Future nop-cancellable aperating lease rentals not provided for
and payable;
Mot later than one year 2187 1.681
Later than one year but not 1ater than five years 4,663 5.021
Later than five years - 251
Total operating lease commitments (including GST) 6,856 8,053

The total lease expenditure commitments above include iInput tax credits of $0.623 million that are expected to be recoverable from the ATO
(30 June 2014: $0.732 miltion},

26 Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Al reporting date, there-were no significant contingent assets or liabilities incurred in the normial course of busingss (2014: Nil,
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27 Related Party Transactions

All transactions by UrbanGrowth NSW with key management personnel are conducted on an arm's length basis in the normal course of
business and on commercial terms and conditions.

Compensation paid to the key management personnel of UrbanGrowth NSW was 54,047 million (2014 $2 857 million),

2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Short term employee benefits 3.809 Hlaz
Post-employment benefits 238 131
Terminaticn benefits 8 534
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 4,047 2,857

There are no outstanding baltances relating to any key management parsonnel,

There have been no puarantees provided or received for any key management personnel.

28 Joint Arrangements

As part of normal business operations, UrbanGrowth NSW has various contractual arrangements with other parties. The arrangements are for
Iand development, which is UrbanGrowth NSW's cora business. These contractual arrangements require unanimous cangent from all parties for
all retevant activities. In all the joint arrangements the parties have equal voting rights,

These arrangements are therefore classified as joint operations and UrbanGrowth NSW recognises its direct right 1o the jointly held assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses as described in note L.27.

Details of these arrangements are as follows:

Mame of joint arrangement | Mature of List of Parties Involved Project location 2015 2014
relationship
Macarthiur Heights Joint operation s University of Western Sydney Campbelitown, NSW | Yes Yes
Burnya Joint operation + Depariment of Planning Doonside, NSW Yes Yes
One Minto Jaint aperation = Land & Housing Corporatian Minto, NSW Yes Yes
s Campbeiliown City Coungil
Rouse Hill Town Centre Joint operation + Department of Planning Rouse Hill NSW Yes Yes
Oran Park Town Centre Joint operation +  Greenfield Davelopment Oran Park, NSW Yes Yes
Corporation Lid
+  Leppington Pastoral Co Py Lid
Green Square Town Centre - | Joint operation Mirvac Green Square Limited Grean Square, NSW Yes Yes
Newcastie East End loint operation GPT Hunter Custodian Pty Lid Newcastie, NSW Yes Yes
Aircls Bradbury Rengwal Jaint operation MSW Land and Housing Alrds, NSW Yes Yes
Corparation
Ciaymore Renewal Joint operation NSW Land and Housing Claymore, NSW Yes Yes
Corporation

29 Events After Reporting Period

There has been no matenal post Statement of financial position events which would require disciosure or adjustments to the 30 fune 2015
Financial Statements.

30 Segment Information

In 2015 and 2014 UrbanGrowih NSW operated n one business segment, and one geéographical segment., Consequently, a segmeant report for
2015 and 2014 has not been reported.
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

Corporate directory

The current and previous years’ Annual Report can be downloaded at:

www.urbangrowthnsw.com.au/annualreport

For general enquiries contact: enquiry@urbangrowth.nsw.gov.au

For more information, contact the Head of Corporate Affairs, visit our website
www.urbangrowthnsw.com.au or call (02) 9841 8600.

Head office

Level 14, 60 Station Street
Parramatta NSW 2150

PO Box 237

Parramatta NSW 2124
Phone: (02) 9841 8600
Fax: (02) 9841 8688
Monday — Friday

8am — 6pm

CBD office

Urban Transformation Division
Level 16, 227 Elizabeth Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Phone: (02) 9841 8600

Fax: (02) 9841 8688
Monday — Friday

8am — 6pm

Newcastle office

Level 4, Suite G

251 Wharf Road
Newcastle NSW 2300
PO Box 33

Newcastle NSW 2300
Phone: (02) 4927 7444
Fax: (02) 4927 7499
Monday — Friday

9am — 5pm

Landcom sales offices

A full list of sales offices and

their opening hours can be found at:

www.landcom.com.au/contact/sales-centres
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Web www.urbangrowthnsw.com.au

Disclaimer

While every effort has been made to ensure that this document is correct at the time of
printing, UrbanGrowth NSW (including its agents and employees) makes no warranties

as to the accuracy or completeness of the information in the document. Not all concepts
considered in these papers reflect government policy or are under active consideration.
UrbanGrowth NSW disclaims any and all liability to any person in connection with anything
done or committed to be done in reliance upon the whole or any part of the document.
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